EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.
Karla Bodden, Authorized Signatory
Sinead Wagner, Authorized Signatory
KY1-1202
103 30464

PO Box 30464, 103 South Church Street, Harbour Place, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1202, Cayman Islands

03 6212 8316

DIAM

DIAM Cayman Trust -
Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection

1/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50 6,989
50
6,989
50
6,989
50 4,554
2023 31 UFJ

139.77 91.07

21217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DIAM
DIAM Cayman Trust — Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection
DIAM
DIAM
DIAM
Queensgate Bank and Trust
Company Ltd.
50 6,989
50 6,989
50 6,989
50 4,554
2023 31 UFJ

139.77 91.07

3/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,000 3.3 3.0

1,000 10,000 2.2 2.0

10,000 30,000 1.1 1.0

30,000 0.275 0.25
2023 2024 31

https://www.mizuho-sc.com/index.html

4/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DIAM
DIAM
2011 29 2015
1990 22
2011 29
2011 29
2011 25
2011
2015

2020 31 2026 30 2021 30

6/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

P b DI bR

)= b2 b
g =i g A= VR Py Tr Fe
HlLie— s PLR g

BN FILERTT

a¢ij&wbwt@»?yﬁ+55%§E§§§m¥ Ty MNHUETL  Av h
FFR b furice- UiFw kK

e ag i LT T
{7y FOEEMEH. B, Bl

: - - = Febdz b froriz—
[ bmﬁgg}%@%m BRL (w0 3Ty R
sz {??mefﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬂ}
EnEnfiaEn  Fesr
ResliTE =ty . |
amran | (EEEBROi | R —
BRIH - i AR OAYEE| | REaSIEET
Eﬁﬂﬁ{@ ‘;7‘.]2?_} }.,7_-_—?_.3_}:3{:_/}, fﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁ ':j?;: }‘Uﬁﬁﬁﬂ)
OnethEt AL censBREERs|| o
(77 FOEEOINE| |J 0B - 2520E
B IUER AT BE BRIFER)
)
l |
=[5
‘——Egiiﬁ“ BEERZY
_Eﬁgﬁg%__ ‘e | EEnEEERAStt | [REEEait|
Hirt =
ppe S Py bR euHew || AT R
. R - * -
(HAECBWIEE | | (RiHhs B SOl | N VR et
: 74 (Tvy FomEoma| L. L1723
BESOME- A B rommEmcEy 2 2
F U OREES) e ERERL S UI—|| (T Fis
2 OBBIE| pAA T
=3) i
#3)

71217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 29
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company
Ltd.
2011 29
FirstCaribbean International Bank
and Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited
2022 20
Mizuho Trust & Banking
(Luxembourg) S.A.
2011
Mizuho Bank (USA)
One 2011
2011
us
Janus Henderson Investors US LLC
2021 31
State Street Bank and Trust
Company
2011
2015 10

8/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
ooooodooodnoooooodod

2011

2023 2,000,000 7,954
10,000,000 2,000,000
2023 6,609,418 2,380

1990 22

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

2009 Queensgate Trust Company

Ltd.

2014

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.
2023
KY1-1202
Queensgate 2,000,000 100
Group Ltd. 103 30464

2011 29

9/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 29

1925

50

150

CIMA
CIMA

10/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

11/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA
20 CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
PricewaterhouseCoopers
EDINET

23 25

12/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EDINET

26 198
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

13/217



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

77 FOHn

1 EELTZO—70bn A4 =R NSRRI LT O SR HEDA 2 h 254 Y DR,
It EOR 2D ELTHMZ T,

@ FO—s Ul of =L FREER ORI, 77 A ¥ R 2SR AT e T T O =T R T Ve e e —
PP e e O ) 0 P o PR N IR o

@ =i ol o = P e OB TS L RIS LT e s T
BRENRL A AR R T RS, L THERLTOAR RS T,

] FO— O — PR B L, SAPLL (U o3 L BB BT O i S S S, e L —F = B B TS e s s
T Al BT A A S T T SR e AGLET,

D BESEOTE=—XGDETIDOMITI I ADSEINT ZTEHTEET,
© KINARIN 772 (IR IV 750U 7 2 3R (RPN AN VARG AE/ 2 47292
(BEHAACRY) RV ERBEF L2 5 2 (B A 70 RY) 26 35T 222 s,
® %l 4527 A CEFRRE R F L A SRR ) T, BRIEL TR S e il S T ey BRI S [F0
fivgde
#2 RAMABRE T ki L TEEALT A T TUAS RO R R L T3 R TSRS AL OEL R T,
w3 kW LUERY LR ST N BT R R RREL SR s B BETR R IVLT RS (BRARE PEEE S
g&ag&ﬂifig;-rfﬁziﬂﬁ HEE DR HLUEFVREF AT EAMER REESCAENTT BT REES foal BRLR
L METS
Wi WEIHE ijl] Hi ARSI A ERRCERET AR MEAERE LTS AR AR RS o TIOEEL, RELET S RL TSR
(AR BEER o TRTFURL T LR A EER A b7 3RS B SEIT R o0 T SLL T T ST
PRV BT RARAR Ao e AR SET, L SRR VR R S T B AR B BN S0 TR LT,
#5 Iﬂgatﬂ;lﬁltimﬁhu DiHEAREA PR TIEMERIIETT. ARSI R RS RIM R AR RN TS
CEEERTRY EET,

[ 1153 5080 %6, WM E L THEISH (6 R FTTav s B O i E R LD I TINAR o il
frogd.

@ [ AP ACRL | *H, Al RAT R AL
6 [BAREE ) S RKELBT I RLTACRZ  EARER S2ES AEIERAREN 2 ok 23 SAAER) BELES L LUEE L IRER L
FeA AR EE REERE L ET. A% TR SRS F IR | bl e AT,
*7 (B L WE, = -7 OGRS, A0S S FER BRI B At mL T EE  RIB S LT ERE S A
Fo b R R AR iR E T R RN AL R ET I O TEEIORNET LT,
*B [ WAEE | E RFGEERAT R MR BEES T,

@ Fkoridtod v BT sl ovTRIET Ao TiiaiEd A,
® &R AR A SHIEG TR IR Sk L i b s L EollogRe SR T 20 THES
MEg A AR EDEEAENEGSLRNET.

(W

14/217



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

S ORIV BRI OIS I BT AT R

@ H W BR AN ORREIT. R ML L Le o RS SR TNA CABIE| Cnt kS W BN
FTAHIERT 5%#‘5&"’“H5ﬂ?‘"ﬁfﬁﬁf‘#‘o

DIAMA{ 72+ k52 k= 50— U\ — L

HEERTER

jug iy
duunnnnn Qikbly

EAT P P
LA fili 1

(1 VG i Ed W7 S A MR iR RS . SR MRS W OH AR el T AR rERE T I O AE DR T,

(D) SRR L) Sl R R AR ST o RS, BRI TR PR B W BT ET .

B EELER TR B SRR D O SEET BT Bt A,

o B EL R EE T ST B A GEDHEELTO BB EE S LN, TS R ) DR R E R S TR AR TN SD
R EEET, AL BMTENU ISR SRR TE SO PasNER A,

@DIAM A T b I A=A T=r e f = VRl R T e e A b e L S a LR IS T, B oo
DEFEPRYORET . OGO ERIHEL T A FHELTW A EILER G BT,
TR R REIC LI P EEES )
w it Femrof o = F R EAOH_ bt L e TR bR a0, I DS RS LR EE S ET,
o d RS A A PR ESE T A LR E 1O ShE R RSO T EEEETET.
EDEERE LTI A (R P S A0l (EEEES, R AR RS A (RS B
o [ AR A | o e, [ R of o — L Sl | (R ) AT e b A v i, B R R B R EEA
LEFLATL (S RERY o) (e TaET,
o L ERL A R | O SRRty e D0, TR T W2 o (S Loy B 1o ldd,
B BF LS P R EEE OB A0 SR R o R - B atthh T,
(DR Bk 2L ( EEOERS, AR 2 R TR R R A 2 aﬁﬂ AELA B
o FEESTERATY. EECHFC o TR S A EER TR BRI R To Tl vz, T BT LW [ 2T 23 2 B e
BB, [RFLEE | ol 2B EE e ARl o LS 2o bbbk,
o [HFLAER]ST S BER CELTL— M PRS2, BB SR ki ra ey,
o [ WL A-E R 19 25 2 BER e LT L — e TR LA i, S i L3,

@ “hETHMELELAEI oW TER R T MTFoLNIenE 1,
e DI RAD Blizaa
RS = #IJEEJ\T}!LﬂJ‘T}?ﬁﬁFﬁ‘FJ‘+| Apacam || awmiswEm ‘

i e L i B e ) TIIMEEICHLT

> R TIE R B2 | b i e
o

N =R R 22k (RFIEARL 50 -
¥ !J:# w31 m! DS 7 izt‘!‘ii;i«tbf

#H UHE T 3

-

FEITEOHE RO L % < FNOEREE LA | el
EF MR 5 A SR T | e R B 15 3 (e SR A s, WA
T, 5 A2 T PR R ) aeEREE T,

(B3] HEL RN 22 (SRR EO SR WE 2Tk, SRR ST AT LA DA LUV B ME - BN EEREL S,
(A EELBEENL-72Z (FAGER) HBROMEBELLTOEYMELCL). SR R (EEL ) QRN ERECRE L ICHTEAYT RIS
TERAEEYE T, 0. SEEH VA ER SO ERETEILO TEAVEE A,
# AR L=, EREEC SR WS RNET
# EIRCHA. SRR FAEEFLE AR NERE R T AR S Cw. FRELTHNERL TO RERSEFTCETY,. BYUAIES 208
TEEHO TS FENLAORRED SYERHOEEER 2@y $ET. £ FAECBVEF QR SEXENOREEEFL DY
B oEE LT AR ML S B S AR (S L SO R B ERELET.

15/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

77 F O HL A
TERREE
HO—1 U A A= IR E R T e Kl — L i =3
(447 BB E R
HFLEEENITZ (B "
—— - -
WA R
{3 N) ﬂ,
m : MLFNISR (BEATEL
pmas —
(B | gEans.
: s FLRRBEAR A5 hoSR BAHEL)
' [ KR B 19/ SR ok
ik fi e
[ ch -]
EELRBENI SR (B
Pl
MESEEE
(A w[ NErSAn@dE [ tESIHRERERUET,

HrFPRARNLY RRREN SRS TP ARDCE D AR Iy RN OB AL AR SET .~ REI N PARNC G, HE s sl an s A
A EMOCER T AN EEALE Y DRSS SRR AN TR BRSO TY. FOREEISEU TS HREND T T AR AN TS
AU OEETEE SRR R T (LR S LR RN S SR AR T ) AL R R T FERAL TR ISR T TS L F (RS
TR R (2 T 2R LT LSS ST A DRSSO ERE B, AT ARSI A DERE SO TEE RS ET,

S P
BB Ba
90
30 S P cce
Caa
10 S P
15
10
@ @
30

16/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

NDF

171217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18/217



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

NDF (/77255 T W74 —F) Wi I T

Ly PRSI ENDFS
LG 1R TICH I T BT PRI R ET,

LAl - SoH M T Tlde--

(e, TS VLT, £ Y EAE = f ¥R L P EPLY)

| B8 PRING | IASTEEHEA
O

S

NDFH ism

B 2y ) WA R T o e,
R ST E R T
WERBL Ao
T ARB AT E O Y S
PPy, g, e il LA
l‘_._,-’u”"f_‘bd':.:_i-ﬂ

o

i

NDF (2%« FNRFTN-737—F) ]yl &ix

@ 05 A ARG |- FE T B I e R ORI | T, S o L R e, R e
T ik T

@ il B FHINT L G S s o ke, R LD SR B AR TS B S e, SR
(S e R A A = AL RS O AR TR N 1B IS 0 S ETL A e - ate o s
VRSP IEN RO ET FOS NDF O GRS S D S8 INDE A 75 4 F 4 80D A5 0 i
BRSNS AT RS A BT AR R ET.

NDFSESH G ER RE T 20 A—30

{963
+ NDFMEERE > HMEH
ERATRESTREOBFL S rER g A
NDFO S HE LB ESh a4 H
(NDFA> 754 F&M) 120018120
F SR Al B o bR AT B
A, vl AR BECRAE S
HOET . LORT. HBININIES
FLEITA(EHEMYSTONE) O
MR (SR 2N TORT)
DRI, Fr R Fr =73,

NDFSESF ICEETSALMILFEDIET,

NDFIEEg# < e st A A= ST F A TORRSS TEE R

AR ERNHPRAORES S BE | 22 20 8 RORRE Pl ELIET 20T
BIFR A

0 »(BHE)

@ iESEEH BRI S IONDFIS | Z# T a0 i o0 Ak, R i i~ B T a e A Y o
AR S A MU T A R B 2 b S0 E T W B Z B Al O B B LS Lo TR A T
HFENDFIG N IR F R b TR A E L R D e iR O i, S 2 p i i T,

# R REOBEEATY, SR WO BN SR AL L, BRI LD T A S SR AL A0, 2 Ak
RS O T BT AR A

4 f 2, NDFIE 4 2 B b W+ 2 00— 800, NDFR | B AR B B TS TR B L e TR A ER A

19/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

One

us

DFREMITO ENE
; : < EAESE>: SROMITEER
DR RALE LU ERGHOMEE <hL=F«FESE > FHRIT

<IEEMREE EESHERS

v S
DEENEDIRE

< =11k -3 @2 AEEE LU RS B D
SEAELSEE. MAELSE frasiicledigdy iy
<O ATAT L A IS ER B NEE.

DAL ERIIMTLSERE%>

BFESEEROE=RT <PFISEEIINE>

20/217



usS

2023

10 20

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60 70

1970

21/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
(b)
©
(@
O]

0.01 0.01

221217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/217



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

VRO AL ISP 5 B

LA LR Sl B S0 R AL I S0 e A S0 B S b R T O T AL E S EH LRI E, T8N
HI2 5 1O S0 RN T A0E T 28, RSO EY ERERGEL L0 TEA N EE A,

arid i, o RCE TR I e iz g A L A G e B R A SR SN2 LR FURE I R LR R R e LT ISR E Bl R v E S LY
12 AT AR LG FH0ET SOl S EO SR #E S HO 1257 DE0FT R i 0T e o R #BHE 2T
FilvHILiZenty.

i il e oR R, ST LRI B 27 Folli s m T 0TS ELA,

AHESEE QYRR E@EOBE (1 A—2) (RFLBRISADIES)
AR LR EDh s ER OO TRE

106 0#F A <RENFEREEISI DS RRE SR LOL gL <RENFEEEEISIDSKRE SR TRLEES

HEE1 DRI TR
I 1O5.0KEN  1DS0RER -0 105 03 1
el A e = i £y gk L — T
1 ﬂﬁﬂﬂ' 045
E SHER1.0REE
5 083K | 103 0K
Ly
"
E .
HEmn £ E4D gt [ NED SED SET
SERLE SE%ELE H‘ﬂ’_‘nﬂ “HEREE 'ﬂ'ﬂ“.‘-ﬁl SHEEEE 1w g SE#HLE
TR TR DR TR TR T
AR MR R A 50 DRE LR IR b 0L e S G BT R T

FROERTROr— AT AiEOAREE A SEOARE R HEAL AR SOREE R AL, kOB ETET,
r—ZA REETEF ORI+ S RO SEF S BO-REFE S0 O R EliE 0= kb= 1.0k
=28 RS S 0K+ SO SRESHEH O0-GRES e DY a T S0 E ADSKEL= DKL
Ar—AC R ETHI 0 SEO RFSEEAEOGEF S L0 DL AT EEE O 5 A2 DRFL= a1 0HFIL
#A B, COr—AIsH Tk, HES PR T~ TREETTY. | OSAEEEEROomSi L), B ERO BRI ThBr-
FERESSTVET, JOLC BEFERORSEOVTIE. SESAGICSERTAO TS [SRSORMEE ] S [EEERO1 OXx
b S O MR | o A SR T AL,
# R, AMEAHC R SER HbhET,
FERI AT dh), RERO SACE Y 1 D &5 T BT E TSRO TRV OTIREGES,
FRR R PR LR R E T T T, RO AR ST 1 O A L. B AOSS AREE R, BELIC
LHETERET.,

TEVFE (A8 0 77 P F O A S Eo T, Sl — B e LA B I s e — S LS Y T A 1
FABNET T P A AR ED AL SRR D L LT 27 DR T R L A S R AR T,

FEED—EFfTHFED—EHELCHES L D —BAREUCHE T 58S

wl T O
(K E
ANZHNA. TE il IEETE
SEA (A EE REIR (AR
Bl & AEaL Byt i B L
TEEMRET TR R e
HET. AT,

241217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

50

50

50

15

50 )

) 20

10

10

)
()

25/217



10

(
10

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20

)
)

)

30

10

26/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

271217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Baa BBB S P BBB

28/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA CIMA

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

OFAC EU
UK

OFAC EU UK

OFAC EU UK

34/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

€Y)

35/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Oooooooooooooooooad

4 R OB T A EE S N\

BRI OO ERE EH AT+ —7 A RS
@ £5%F ¥ T EE D B RLD ®ERH T AHEOE-M) Y
FEoA) g B @ ER 74 —7 2 ED 5 (R

QEEFNFODYIDEZL) T B
= =

- ___ /

EFRTB S ERE

@

®

VaR

2023

36/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FE AT FORE ) Ay e TR 2 RO e — D LTRSS

']"'.‘}Fﬂ")f!.j‘ﬁ!‘&"!"fﬁﬁ] f'!"-i.?'::} R 12 iy e B s = . &
AR PR bste T LR BRI 7 5 A B RO

2O1BIEGH ~ M2 ES OB E M - B r a7 r e i & Y ZOFF L TR RN SRR e AT B e TS

A0 b (A S R SRR g A - H ok EA R L - han T, A5 e ) I 3502 A0 0 B

B 2 Rt L s T (4 HAhY 2 o By iR um e, 7y - PG EM R g o
Lomch L Lo T

CHEAHEEALCSE (BSED) ST CRFLERAF LIS my ) S >
[ (%] {6}
e e R 120 —
EMREE EN L A |
260 | = it AR | O S RS (e | -1 100 100 ! i & - :.E'
Bl
150 &0 &0 |- <IN BTN
a21%
1oo b G ; 1 5| g h
iy 140 14,7%
ﬂ - - m m - ' N aw
SB%  ® am sow g 5E%
L L i L 1% i - i i * L Lk g =
= = ‘' om 4%
3 > —Ei% T
NS U 1 i | = oy e s et —h2E% I SRR UL
1% ~227%
— 40 —4&0
8 1:10- 198 2046 2146 2208 23/5 HeEndE Sl RAEM EROH GEEN SARR ERDe
BERISZ
CHRENLRTSUILTFISSZ(BAGRE) BETE CHEFLBISVLLFAISI (BAGEY) BT >
(ML) %) e 1)
300 120 120
EMBEAE SN -~ Bl
B = SHIR R R 1 O M R AR e | - 100 100 e - '-:tlﬁl
=Bl
200 - - &0 B0
&0 &0 - PR N
2%
a0 | E 1 k5
P65%
50 b - 20 20 b 1% . . ! Tom, - 14T%
25 B 3% sm o GEE
ot i M igi. - -
a ] 0 — ~'—-'-‘+—--—-t—1-—-_ﬂﬁ : e
4% A% gy =
I s . A 4 =20 =50} e ~135% . . T
16.0% 27
—ap —4p L=
1876 HH 2008 218 2218 235 HEAlE BEl RARE EREDE BEDR SARN ERDA
7'5".-;1;#?»
A

37/217



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HRENLRTREMA R (2 ok S (SR SRR DTS CHREVIEERERE/ A b SR (BALTEY) SRl
(& = 0] %) %)
300 120 120
ol RS B
250 | =— el DS RR S v. | = 100 100 L | i PR R !--:liai
= Bl
&8 ) B 1 B 7. TR
7% 427%
a0 i Mgl T A .
L i AR T i 14.7%
= - SB® am am i 5B
o 4 o o | i .*l,{,}!‘-‘-"
2% 4% =4
s as ATRRREE, . TR | PRl =20 | - oreiE T125% . o 5 TOT% ﬁ
. =22 7%
i o ¥
1848 yais 2006 2148 pas 2L !:ﬂ'ﬂl Bkt SADE ERDE BXEN SARR ERDe
ik 23
<EFILREBELISIEAGEY) BLES> <EFILEEFLISA(BRSER) BENER>
) (%] i
300 120 120
EMEES |
250 H—armamaw o8- nRmEn =8 |- - 4 100 T ] R S "':]H='
60k con SRR BT
4
20 cag 140F 14,75
A B I sn E% o
o _ﬁ‘ :Eﬁ —61% —4.2%
I N i N N 1 i - a.m _ED -—'I'}h e [ 125% I_zzml 3 i
—40 —40
18/6 128 20/8 2158 226 235 .?ﬂgx Bl HANH FREDY xR LARN EREA

HNT: Bloomberg P43 EUFHR BRI 6 b7 — 2 051 - P M S i b
5T

O Fr RS AR N | TN A b R A O BT 0 R e SRR T e TR L R R L TR L S T B F T

# TreFedE MR E L R ER AL R T RN S A AR O A R R A E R L T SR e L e T T

w0 P S R L R R O L A, S T R S T RO R i e LT SO R ML e T

o T e RR RN A S T A R R D MR, b RS N H A AT S S MR AR FlL T, RS M AT T L
LT,

TRy L | 5 S RN ST RN I R S R L LT AT A 2 R U T TR AR R A S A R A SR
o

@ FreFod MR e SR EEROTrrFo M R T TN S TS TR Sh T BV A L I s T I R RN e . BRERE NS
L AL &

E PRI LN RE S AO SR TALOTIERN LA

RSO

B #  TOPIN (RS

R - PTSERREIS SRR (Brd 048, B—20
W - SEPERMEE TR

H AN« T R— Lt i E LR BT A A S TR

YE M - FTSEG WS fE R BedAdk, [es—m)

FrM 4 - - - FTSES M0 e (=20

FESE PN S B, Bloomberg LP-CIRAL Tyl

TOELX ¢ R 1 B O B S X TOPIN ISR S R At BE . Mt M PN i iU 2 I PN I oo [l Sk (EUF T 1PN [ Bven =t )
G AT A MR R, IR B 2 R TOPIXE R S-S SO Rl A v B EUTOPTR ISR SR E iR R S T Rl PR
AL I PXLL, TOPINCHR S MO R 2 5 e s, St eI 2L

FTSERM A4 B R H A, 15— 20 FTSE #9500 850 R B, =2 ) S5 L P TSESR MU ST I B (P~ — =) B2 B~ T M S
London Stock Exchange Group pleffzidSo P haba? a— 7 fio i B S 802 FTSE International Limited, FTSE Fixed Income LLCE 0
SRR SN o TR TVET . London Stock Exchange Group pleds ETF20 X L7 S0 TR . e i ml st ot s
AT EARHLTH WO Ry i A

38/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.5
1,000 3.3 3.0
1,000 10,000 2.2 2.0
10,000 30,000 1.1 1.0
30,000 0.275 0.25
0.01
3,750
0.08
11,250

0.015

39/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.01
3,750

0.755

0.51

0.20

40/217



15

20.315

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15.315 2038 20

41/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15.315

2038 15

20.315 15.315 2038 20
20.315 15.315 2038 20
15
15.315
2038 15
20.315 15.315 2038 20

15

421217



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)

81
US IGA
US IGA UK IGA AEOI
US 1GA CRS
AEOI
CRS
AEOI
AEOI
AEOI
CRS
US 1GA
I1GA
IRS TIA
TIA
TIA
IRS TIA
US IGA US IGA AEOI
FATCA

FATCA

43/217

50

Ooooooooooooooooooad

100
CRS

AEOI
TIA US 1GA

AEOI

us

TIA

FATCA
FATCA

FATCA



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA US IGA
US IGA
US IGA AEOI FATCA
CRS
AEOI
CRS TIA CRS

AEOI

AEOI

TIA
90

44/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
14,020,135 62.10
1,300,895 5.76
790,323 3-50
719,932 3.19
683,601 3.03
665,879 2.95
615,804 2.73
494,388 2.19
417,561 1.85
367,896 1.63
346,111 1.53
301,219 1.33
240,000 1.06
231,906 1.03
145,100 0.64
108,088 0.48
92,053 0.41
148,995 0.66
21,689,886 96.08
885,982 3.92
S?ié275,868 100.00
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(2023
NGL ENERGY
OPERATING LLC / 7.500 | 20267271 | 317,000 | 317,000 | 303,146 | 1.34
NGL ENERGY FIN
SEAGATE HDD
o 9.625 | 203271271 | 268,510 | 319,319 | 203,205 | 1.30
STANDARD
INDUSTRIES 3.375 | 203171715 | 374,000 | 338,721 | 201,738 | 1.20
INC/NJ
CARNIVAL CORP 7.625 | 2026/3/1 | 300,000 | 283.334| 284,774 | 1.26
FORD MOTOR
FoR0 TR 3.250 | 2025/9715 | 260,000 | 306,618 | 265,755 | 1.18
FULL HOUSE
il 8.250 | 202872715 | 282,000 | 287,983 | 265,703 1.18
VOZART DEBT
L 5.250 | 202071071 | 309,000 | 300,415 | 263,771 1.17
SUNOCO LP 7
snoco B e 4.500 | 203074730 | 299,000 | 286,199 | 261,233 | 1.16
HADRIAN MERGER 8.500 | 2026/5/1 | 283,000 | 261,864 | 249,048 1.11
SUB INC
ROYAL CARIBBEAN
10| onsee 4o 11.625 | 202778715 | 224,000 | 223,750 | 243,204 | 1.08
11| CEVEX SAB DE CV 9.125 240,000 | 240,000 | 240,000 | 1.06
CARGO AIRCRAFT
12| o0 AR 4.750 | 20287271 | 261,000 | 256,750 | 227,237 | 1.01
13| FIBER BIDCO SPA 11.000 | 2027710725 | 200,000 | 191,545 | 226,022 | 1.00
14| 11-vI INC 5.000 | 2029/12/15 | 252,000 | 248,391 | 224,659 | 1.00
15| PCF GVBH 4.750 | 2026/4/15 | 240,000 | 287.280 | 212,815 ] 0.94
16 fﬁéY TELEVISION 4.750 | 2030710715 | 327,000 | 323,078 | 212,707 | 0.94
BANCO DE
17| Ao O 2026/9/8 | 200,000 | 200,696 | 212,026 | 0.94
18 | TRANSDIGM INC 4.875 | 2029/5/1 | 238,000 | 226,210 | 211.852] 0.94
CHOBANI LLC /
19| cHoBANI FIN. 7.500 | 2025/4715 | 213,000 | 204,177 211,818 | 0.94
CORP INC
20| HT TROPLAST GVBH 9.250 | 2025/7/15 | 200,000 | 224,280 | 211,740 0.94
VICTORIA'S
21 | (JIRIATS 4.625 | 202077715 | 275,000 | 241,215 | 211,299 | 0.94
WYNDHAM
22| IO s e 6.625 | 2026/7/31 | 212,000 | 220,994 | 209,764 | 0.93
HOUSE OF HR
23| gooos 9.000 | 202071173 | 200,000 | 197,506 | 207,225 | 0.92
24| DT MIDSTREAM INC 4.125 | 2029/6/15 | 234,000 | 234,000 | 203,173 | 0.90
25 gggET HEALTHCARE 6.125 | 203076715 | 206,000 | 206,000 | 199,194 | 0.88
LORCA TELECOM
26| Lot TeL 4.000 | 202779718 | 200,000 | 211,605 | 194,905 | 0.86
TEVA
27 ETS&NQEEUT'CAL 3.750 | 2027/5/9 200,000 | 213,548 | 193,583 | 0.86
NETHERLANDS
FIRST QUANTUM
28 [ o] SAT 6.875 | 2027710715 | 200,000 | 193,840 | 100,720 | 0.84
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ION TRADING
29 | TECHNOLOGIES 5.750 | 2028/5/15 229,000 232,883 190,581 | 0.84

SARL

FAGE INTL SA /
30| FAGE USA DAIRY 5.625 | 2026/8/15 200,000 187,774 189,314 ] 0.84

INDUSTRY
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2023
(2014 31 ) 23,144,502 3,234,907,045 125.45 17,534
(2015 31 ) 21,277,278 2,973,925,146 127.19 17,777
(2016 31 ) 9,869,910 1,379,517,321 122.58 17,133
(2017 31 ) 9,407,131 1,314,834,700 138.44 19,350
(2018 31 ) 10,205,790 1,426,463,268 145.28 20,306
(2019 31 ) 6,992,435 977,332,640 143.79 20,098
(2020 31 ) 6,099,557 852,535,082 159.67 22,317
10
(2021 31 ) 5,092,481 711,776,069 160.93 22,493
11
2022 31 4,916,824 687,224,490 161.31 22,546
12
2023 31 3,702,213 517,458,311 146.28 20,446
2022 3,579,628 500,324,606 136.41 19,066
3,801,821 531,380,521 14488 20,250
3,730,040 521,347,691 142.15 19,868
3,555,312 496,925,958 135.49 18,937
10 3,652,754 510,545,427 139.20 19,456
11 3,629,628 507,313,106 141.47 19,773
12 3,570,102 498,993,157 141.06 19,716
2023 3,702,213 517,458,311 146.28 20,446
3,552,949 496,595,682 14414 20,146
3,510,250 490,627,643 145.06 20,275
3,530,706 493,486,778 145.90 20,392
3,501,361 489,385,227 14469 20,223
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(2014 31 ) 86,633,356 | 12,108,744,168 56.07 7,837

(2015 31 ) 64,644,688 9,035,388,042 40.37 5,643

(2016 31 ) 31,066,828 4,342,210,550 20.50 2,865

(2017 31 ) 41,614,154 5,816,410,305 27.36 3,824

(2018 31 ) 23,776,104 3,323,186,056 26.69 3,730

(2019 31 ) 14,324,094 2,002,078,618 20.00 2,795

(2020 31 ) 10,515,051 1,469,688,678 15.86 2,217
10

(2021 31 ) 6,483,639 906,218,223 10.74 1,501
11

2022 31 5,295,153 740,103,535 10.32 1,442
12

2023 31 4,537,161 634,158,993 10.11 1,413

2022 4,431,111 619,336,384 8.96 1,252

4,730,645 661,202,252 9.61 1,343

4,674,089 653,297,420 9.51 1,329

4,255,236 594,754,336 8.70 1,216

10 4,287,761 599,300,355 9.27 1,296

11 4,348,551 607,796,973 9.43 1,318

12 4,238,735 592,447,991 9.39 1,312

2023 4,537,161 634,158,993 10.11 1,413

4,355,237 608,731,475 9.74 1,361

4,523,105 632,194,386 10.12 1,414

4,489,642 627,517,262 10.31 1,441

4,332,685 605,579,382 10.03 1,402
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(2014 31 ) 28,886,284 4,037,435,915 74.16 10,365

(2015 31 ) 22,846,037 3,193,190,591 62.42 8,724

(2016 31 ) 9,937,453 1,388,957,806 39.38 5,504

(2017 31 ) 10,774,351 1,505,931,039 46.83 6,545

(2018 31 ) 10,929,376 1,527,598,884 46.83 6,545

(2019 31 ) 8,577,723 1,198,908,344 35.01 4,893

(2020 31 ) 6,174,194 862,967,095 27.88 3,897
10

(2021 31 ) 2,320,966 324,401,418 23.26 3,251
11

2022 31 1,539,834 215,222,598 21.05 2,942
12

2023 31 1,132,522 158,292,600 17.91 2,503

2022 1,215,969 169,955,987 17.13 2,394

1,277,073 178,496,493 18.16 2,538

1,217,916 170,228,119 17.57 2,456

1,018,362 142,336,457 15.81 2,210

10 1,041,992 145,639,222 16.22 2,267

11 1,094,196 152,935,775 17.11 2,391

12 1,079,880 150,934,828 17.05 2,383

2023 1,132,522 158,292,600 17.91 2,503

1,068,498 149,343,965 16.89 2,361

1,091,931 152,619,196 17.26 2,412

1,082,404 151,287,607 17.11 2,391

1,026,709 143,503,117 16.23 2,268
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(2014 31 ) 264,203,888 | 24,061,048,080 102.52 9,336

(2015 31 ) 298,385,862 | 27,174,000,452 94.30 8,588

(2016 31 ) 157,952,934 | 14,384,773,699 81.04 7,380

(2017 31 ) 141,516,180 | 12,887,878,513 79.87 7,274

(2018 31 ) 116,274,709 | 10,589,137,749 72.14 6,570

(2019 31 ) 80,235,438 7,307,041,339 59.08 5,380

(2020 31 ) 68,632,274 6,250,341,193 52.45 4,777
10

(2021 31 ) 48,456,914 4,412,971,158 44.00 4,007
11

2022 31 30,651,460 2,791,428,462 38.05 3,465
12

2023 31 ) 22,447,086 2,044,256,122 31.08 2,830

2022 23,107,145 2,104,367,695 30.57 2,784

24,195,672 2,203,499,849 32.23 2,935

23,381,331 2,129,337,814 31.42 2,861

21,996,895 2,003,257,228 29.70 2,705

10 22,380,587 2,038,200,058 30.29 2,759

11 22,381,075 2,038,244,500 30.57 2,784

12 21,930,331 1,997,195,244 30.24 2,754

2023 22,447,086 2,044,256,122 31.08 2,830

21,890,745 1,993,590, 147 30.43 2,771

21,727,891 1,978,759,033 30.40 2,769

21,678,589 1,974,269,100 30.35 2,764

21,193,096 1,930,055,253 29.87 2,720
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2023 2023

18.60 2,600

17.55 2,453

10.20 1,426

4.20 587

3.60 503

3.60 503

3.60 503

10 1.80 252
11 1.20 168
12 0.50 70
2023 0.03 4
0.03 4

0.03 4

0.03 4
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12.00 1,677

12.00 1,677

11.40 1,593

7.60 1,062

7.20 1,006

7.20 1,006

7.20 1,006

10 3.60 503
11 2.40 335
12 1.40 196
2023 0.10 14
0.10 14

0.10 14

0.10 14
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12.00 1,093

12.00 1,093

12.00 1,093

12.00 1,093

12.00 1,093

12.00 1,093

12.00 1,093

10 7.50 683
11 6.00 546
12 3.00 273
2023 0.20 18
0.20 18

0.20 18

0.20 18
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152,826 51,218 184,492
152,826 51,218 184,492

79,839 97,043 167,288
(79,839) (97,043) (167,288)

1,705 88,478 80,515

(1,705) (88,478) (80,515)

15,575 28,139 67,951

(15,575) (28,139) (67,951)

18,026 15,726 70,251

(18,026) (15,726) (70,251)

990 22,613 48,628

(990) (22,613) (48,628)

780 11,207 38,201

(780) (11,207) (38,201)

10 169 6,726 31,644
(169) (6.726) (31,644)

1 1,815 2,978 30,481
(1,815) (2,978) (30,481)

B 40 5,212 25,309
(40) (5,212) (25,309)

59/217




EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

820,449 342,710 1,545,216
820,449 342,710 1,545,216
499,795 443,798 1,601,213
(499,795) (443,798) (1,601,213)
240,258 325,943 1,515,528
(240,258) (325,943) (1,515,528)
391,819 386,546 1,520,801
(391,819) (386,546) (1,520,801)
133,309 763,230 890,880
(133,309) (763,230) (890, 880)
5,040 179,750 716,170
(5,040) (179,750) (716,170)
3,801 57,052 662,919
(3,801) (57,052) (662,919)
10 0 59,282 603,637
(0) (59,282) (603, 637)
1 0 90,789 512,848
0) (90,789) (512,848)
1 2,150 66,230 448,768
(2,150) (66,230) (448,768)
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236,846 109,288 389,537
236,846 109,288 389,537
80,512 104,052 365,997
(80,512) (104,052) (365,997)
15,285 128,916 252,366
(15,285) (128,916) (252,366)
59,015 81,283 230,098
(59,015) (81,283) (230,098)
43,095 39,803 233,390
(43,095) (39,803) (233,390)
57,790 46,180 245,000
(57,790) (46,180) (245,000)
0 23,558 221,442
©) (23,558) (221,442)
10 4,880 126,547 99,775
(4,880) (126,547) (99,775)
1 0 26,641 73,134
(0) (26,641) (73,134)
1 0 9,886 63,248
(0) (9,886) (63,248)
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1,836,246 912,454 2,577,181
1,836,246 912,454 2,577,181

1,671,181 1,083,968 3,164,394

(1,671,181) (1,083,968) (3.164,394)

138,772 1,354,284 1,948,882

(138,772) (1,354,284) (1,948,882)

293,093 470,317 1,771,658

(293,093) (470,317) (1,771,658)

411,754 571,734 1,611,678

(411,754) (571,734) (1,611,678)

51,948 305,515 1,358,111

(51,948) (305,515) (1,358,111)

89,228 138,708 1,308,631

(89,228) (138,708) (1,308,631)

10 9,770 217,219 1,101,182

(9,770) (217,219) (1,101,182)
1 4,450 300,000 805,632
(4,450) (300,000) (805,632)
1 2,140 85,631 722,141
(2,140) (85,631) (722,141)
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3.50
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FRA

FRA

CIMA

Lux-Fund-Business@mizuho. lu

DPA
DPA

DPA
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DPA

DPA
1,000 3.3 3.0
1,000 10,000 2.2 2.0
10,000 30,000 1.1 1.0

30,000 0.275 0.25
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2026 30

2020 31 2021 30 2026 30
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31
CIMA
300,000
10
@
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() ®
®

()] Q)

O)
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60

731217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
90

30

90

60

60
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131

23 103

2023
139.77
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
1,107,697 154,823
23,122,492 3,231,831 32,631,208 4,560,864
1,490,639 208,347 1,464,934 204,754
368,907 51,562 458,056 64,022
412,295 57,626 611,404 85,456
4,362 610
26,506,392 3,704,798 35,165,602 4,915,096
552,521 77,226 380,173 53,137
582,281 81,385 1,160,217 162,164
51,440 7,190 69,681 9,739
42,534 5,945
31,069 4,343 45,922 6,419
11,500 1,607 9,847 1,376
13,326 1,863 18,009 2,517
22,521 3,148 67,000 9,365
1,345 188 1,351 189
5,328 745 3,781 528
525 73 60,029 8,390
2,767 387 762 107
1,317,157 184,099 1,816,772 253,930
25,189,235 3,520,699 33,348,830 4,661,166
26,506,392 3,704,798 35,165,602 4,915,096
2023 22
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2023 22
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
1,585,457 221,599 2,271,739 317,521
(706,705) (98,776) (4,240,184) (592,651)
603,641 84,371 1,251,868 174,974
387,015 54,093 (2,439,156) (340,921)
(3,951,326) (552,277) 2,650,374 370,443
9,558 1,336
39,430 5,511
(2,081,918) (290, 990) (456,371) (63,787)
212,430 29,691 363,230 50,769
137,974 19,285 220,425 30,809
46,748 6,534 47,681 6,664
23,719 3,315 34,504 4,823
25,856 3,614 86,441 12,082
56,778 7,936 23,919 3,343
67,440 9,426 55,508 7,758
14,195 1,984 68,126 9,522
585,140 81,785 899,834 125,770
(2,667,058) (372,775) (1,356, 205) (189,557)
(1,961,755) (274,194) (5,632,400) (787,241)
(3.173) (443) (3,250) (454)
(4,631,986) (647,413) (6,991, 855) (977,252)
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2023 31

81/217

63,390,679 8,860,115
486,796 68,039
(23,536,790) (3,289,737)
(6,991,855) (977,252)
33,348,830 4,661,166
79,652 11,133
(3,607,261) (504,187)
(4,631,986) (647,413)
25,189,235 3,520,699
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
(4,631,986) (647,413) (6,991, 855) (977,252)
1,961,755 274,194 5,632,400 787,241
3,951,326 552,277 (2.650,374) (370,443)
706,705 98,776 4,240,184 592,651
(603,641) (84,371) (1,251,868) (174,974)
(30,944) (4,325) (7.893) (1,103)
240,000 33,545
89,149 12,460 342,59 47,885
(4,362) (610) 1,850 259
(59,504) (8.317) 60,029 8,390
(18,241) (2,550) (72,397) (10,119)
(14,853) (2,076) (20,415) (2,853)
(4,683) (655) (8,006) (1,119)
1,653 231 (1,584) (221)
(44,479) (6,217) (8,000) (1,118)
1,547 216 566 79
®) @ (1,073) (150)
2,005 280 (41,562) (5,809)
1,301,441 181,902 (537,402) (75,113)
(19,688,099) (2,751,806)  (49,051,544) (6,855,934)
24,941,184 3,486,029 74,339,093 10,390,375
5,253,085 734,224 25,287,549 3,534,441
79,652 11,133 486,796 68,039
(3,564,726) (498,242)  (23,536,790) (3,289,737)
(1,961,755) (274,194) (5.632,400) (787,241)
(5,446,829) (761,303)  (28,682,394) (4,008,938)
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2023 31 2022 31
1,107,697 154,823 (3,932,247) (549,610)
3,932,247 549,610

1,107,697 154,823
1,664,347 232,626 2,902,870 405,734
5,897 824 3,250 454
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2023 31

2011 29
2011 29
2011 15
1107 694 25

2011
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2023 31
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12
30 90
0.69 2022 0.73 9.15 2022
5.05 89.05 2022 93.58 1.11 2022 0.64
64.53 2022 66.72
1933 144
2023 31 144
13,640,863 12,698,289 2022 18,932,506 18,484,477 2023 31
50.41 2022 55.43
2023 31 2024 15 2049 2022 2022 15 2170
1.625 13.25 2022 0.00 12.00
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2011
0.51 2023 31
137,974 2022 220,425
31,069 2022 45,922
2011 29
2022 19 2022 20

0.01

3,750 30

2023 31 56,778 2022 23,919
5,328 2022 3,781
2011
0.08
11,250 2022 19
2022 20
0.08
2023 31 46,748 2022 47,681
11,500 2022 9,847
2011
0.755
0.47 2023 31
212,430 2022 363,230
51,440 2022 69,681
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2011

2022

1,345

86,441

2011

29

2022 1,351

2023

31

2011
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2011
0.015
2023 31
23,719 2022 34,504
0.20
25,856
13,326 2022 18,009
29
0.01 3,750
2023 31 2022 31
1,633,258 2,263,846
7,184 77,198
(54,985) (69,305)
1,585,457 2,271,739
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2023 31 2022 31

1,616,280 4,353,039

168,727

132,926

79,533

247,983 680,351

97,492 217,824

1,961,755 5,632,400

HYUSDUSD
HYUSDBRL
HYUSDBS1
HYAUDAUD
HYJPYJPY
HYJPYBS1

HYJPYBRL

10,000
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2023 31

HYAUDAUD 805,632 2,140 (85,631) 722,141 31.08
HYUSDBRL 512,848 2,150 (66,230) 448,768 10.11
HYUSDBS1 73,134 (9,886) 63,248 17.91
HYUSDUSD 30,481 40 (5,212) 25,309 146.28
2022 31

HYAUDAUD 1,101,182 4,450 (300,000) 805,632 38.05
HYJPYBRL 301,563 4,284 (305,847)

HYJPYBS1 192,947 (192,947)

HYJPYJPY 72,168 (72,168)

HYUSDBRL 603,637 (90,789) 512,848 10.32
HYUSDBS1 99,775 (26,641) 73,134 21.05
HYUSDUSD 31,644 1,815 (2,978) 30,481 161.31

2023 31 2022
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31
2023 31 10
2,312,249 2022 3,263,121
2023 31 10
2022 3,263,121
2023 31
2023 31
100
31
2023 31 2022 31
10 * 10 *
(65,813) (6,581) (31,496) (3,150)
(2.,619) (262) (234,448) (23,445)
(68,432) (265,944)
31 10
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2023 31 10
10
*
2,651,373
328,238
4,313,132
2022 31 10
10
*
2,285,036
46,587
514,762
*
10 10
2023 31 8,332,618 12,481,589 2,051,530 256,755 23,122,492
2022 31 240,067 6,955,070 22,859,860 2,367,621 208,590 32,631,208
31 100
1,396,559 2022 3,127,160
100 1,151,887 2022 5,008,817
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2023 31 2022 31
213,538 0.92 252,757 0.77
201,146 0.87 421,094 1.29
3,043,548 13.16 5,085,642 15.59
2,904,465 12.56 3,270,966 10.02
4,433,829 19.18 4,392,908 13.46
2,712,007 11.73 2,427,484 7.44
3,180,254 13.76 5,924,514 18.16
2,311,422 10.00 2,546,060 7.80
694,337 3.00 4,139,996 12.69
598,560 2.59 1,831,451 5.61
296,564 1.28 0.00
* 0.00 243,569 0.75
20,589,670 89.05 30,536,441 93.58
0.00 206,664 0.63
206,233 0.89 0.00
695,549.00 3.01 884,534 2.71
483,379.00 2.09 213,868 0.66
730,980.00 3.16 0.00
0.00 240,067 0.74
* 0.00 101,375 0.31
2,116,141 9.15 1,646,508 5.05
159,926 0.69 0.00
* 0.00 239,669 0.73
159,926 0.69 239,669 0.73
* 256,755 1.11 208,590 0.64
256,755 1.11 208,590 0.64
23,122,492 100.00 32,631,208 100.00
2023 31
2022
2022
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12

2023 2022 31 90

2023 2022 31

1970
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13
2023 31
159,926 159,926
2,116,141 2,116,141
20,589,670 20,589,670
256,755 256,755
1,490,639 1,490,639
256,755 24,356,376 24,613,131
(582,281) (582,281)
(582,281) (582,281)
2022 31
239,669 239,669
1,646,508 1,646,508
30,536,441 30,536,441
208,590 208,590
1,464,934 1,464,934
208,590 33,887,552 34,096,142
(1,160,217) (1,160,217)
(1,160,217) (1,160,217)
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2023 2022 31
2023 2022 31
30

2023
1,490,639 1,490,639
1,490,639

2022
1,464,934 1,464,934
1,464,934

Q) an - i
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2023
726 726
3,612 945 2,667
811 811
51 51
1,485,439 443,657 1,041,782
1,490,639 446,190 1,044,449
0] G Gy
2022
225 225
109,646 1,108 108,538
6,122 6,122
2,189 327 1,862
5,628 4,739 889
1,341,124 1,139,549 201,575
1,464,934 1,152,070 312,864
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2023
582,281 582,281
582,281
2022
1,160,217 1,160,217
1,160,217
(O) 1)) D)
2023
983 726 257
945 945
894 811 83
122,793 51 122,742
443,657 443,657
13,009 13,009
582,281 446,190 136,091
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® G) iy
2022

6,513 225 6,288

1,108 1,108
6,807 6,122 685

327 327

4,739 4,739

1,139,549 1,139,549
1,174 1,174
1,160,217 1,152,070 8,147

0] (i)

101/217



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

11

12
2023 2023 22 349,530
439,108 104,247 715,715
2023 22
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2023 31
172,000 DISH NETWORK CORP 2.375% 03/15/24 158,312 159,926 0.63
158,312 159,926 0.63
97,000 AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 3.55% 21-PERP 76,873 86,022 0.34
200,000 BANCO DE SABADELL SA FTF 09/08/26 200,696 220,351 0.87
132,000 CHARLES SCHWAB CORP/THE 4% 21-PERP 129,605 121,009 0.48
86,000 CITIGROUP INC 3.875% 21-PERP 84,818 78,849 0.31
107,000 CITIGROUP INC 4% 20-PERP 96,029 99,258 0.39
300,000 CPI PROPERTY GROUP SA 3.75% 21-PERP 296,683 161,116 0.64
100,000 CREDIT SUISSE GROUP AG FTF 04/02/32 110,742 85,223 0.34
200,000 DEUTSCHE BANK AG 10% 22-PERP 200,216 233,102 0.93
100,000 DEUTSCHE BANK AG FTV 06/24/32 110,686 100,428 0.40
100,000 KONINKLIJKE KPN NV 6% 22-PERP 99,313 110,640 0.44
200,000 LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC 8.5% 22-PERP 232,720 253,639 1.01
200,000 zg?gégENT TSB GROUP HOLDINGS PLC 13.25% 195,810 244,240 0.97
200,000 SOCIETE GENERALE SA 9.375% 22-PERP 200,000 215,250 0.85
100,000 TELEFONICA EUROPE BV 6.135% 23-PERP 109,025 107,014 0.42
2,143,216 2,116,141 8.39
69,000 ADAPTHEALTH LLC 5.125% 03/01/30 62,144 61,559 0.24
100,000 ADLER PELZER HOLDING GMBH 4.125% 04/01/24 89,553 90,360 0.36
33,000 AG TTMT ESCROW ISSUER LLC 8.625% 09/30/27 33,000 34,001 0.14
87,000 gl?_jigjggNS COS INC/SAFEWAY INC/NEW A 3.5% 75.276 74,609 0.30
100,000 éléb(lJEBZUSNIVERSAL HOLDCO LLC/ALLIED UN 3.625% 120,050 90,880 0.36
60,819 AMC ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS INC 12% 06/15/26 46,967 29,815 0.12
28,000 ég;?éggg AXLE & MANUFACTURING INC 6.25% 26,875 26,365 0.10
7,000 AMN HEALTHCARE INC 4% 04/15/29 6,073 6,060 0.02
70,000 ANTERO RESOURCES CORP 5.375% 03/01/30 68,372 65,575 0.26
119,000 ARCHES BUYER INC 4.25% 06/0128 98,623 100,595 0.40
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ARCHROCK PARTNERS LP/ARCHROCK PARTNER 6.875%

70,000 04/01/27 73,350 68,682 0.27
93,000 ARCONIC CORP 6.125% 02/15/28 93,138 89,866 0.36
200,000 ARD FINANCE SA 5% 06/30/27 224,859 165,297 0.66
261,000 ézs/i(;%MYETAL PACKAGING FIN. USA LLC/ARDA 6% 261,000 260,559 1.03
48,000 ATKORE INTL GROUP INC 4.25% 06/01/31 48,000 42,251 0.17
175,000 AUSTINBIDCO INC 7.125% 12/15/28 165,664 147,276 0.58
48,000 BALL CORP 3.125% 09/15/31 41,316 39,349 0.16
118,000 BELLRING BRANDS INC 7% 03/15/30 117,126 117,861 0.47
67,000 BOMBARDIER INC 7.5% 02/01/29 67,000 67,159 0.27
69,000 BROADSTREET PARTNERS INC 5.875% 04/15/29 60,968 61,048 0.24
75,000 BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE INC 4.25% 02/01/32 75,356 64,555 0.26
108,000 BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE INC 6.375% 06/15/32 103,545 105,804 0.42
122,000 CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT INC 7% 02/15/30 122,000 124,483 0.49
216,000 CARGO AIRCRAFT MANAGEMENT INC 4.75% 02/01/28 216,470 195,768 0.78
300,000 CARNIVAL CORP 7.625% 03/01/26 283,334 272,939 1.08
100,000 CASTLE UK FINCO PLC 7% 05/15/29 117,599 91,111 0.36
177,000 CATALENT PHARMA SOLUTIONS INC 3.5% 04/01/30 143,917 146,681 0.58
86,000 gg%Hf/L3D2| NGS LLC / CCO HOLDINGS CAPITAL C 4.5% 83,100 71,274 0.28
100,000 CELLNEX TELECOM SA 1.75% 10/23/30 80,305 88,358 0.35
121,000 CHART INDUSTRIES INC 7.5% 01/01/30 121,545 124,025 0.49
50,000 ETSEQ%BLLC / CHOBANT FIN. CORP INC 4.625% 45,576 45,680 0.18
200,000 829?2%5&0 / CHOBANI FIN. CORP INC 7.5% 191,535 196,468 0.78
164,000 CIENA CORP 4% 01/31/30 157,052 143,716 0.57
60,000 COINBASE GLOBAL INC 3.375% 10/01/28 54,397 38,816 0.15
98,000 COINBASE GLOBAL INC 3.625% 10/01/31 92,438 57,260 0.23
49,000 COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC 4.875% 07/15/24 47,642 47,540 0.19
134,000 COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC 6.75% 12/01/27 135,807 131,180 0.52
73,000 CONSOLIDATED COMM. INC 5% 10/01/28 73,600 54,884 0.22
55,000 CONSOLIDATED COMM. INC 6.5% 10/01/28 43,161 44,852 0.18
200,000 DIC ASSET AG 2.25% 09/22/26 235,080 149,093 0.59
234,000 DT MIDSTREAM INC 4.125% 06/15/29 234,000 206,888 0.82
138,000 DT MIDSTREAM INC 4.375% 06/15/31 138,000 120,596 0.48
200,000 DUFRY ONE BV 2% 02/15/27 189,085 186,704 0.74
99,000 ELEMENT SOLUTIONS INC 3.875% 09/01/28 92,025 87,739 0.35
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171,000 ENLINK MIDSTREAM LLC 5.625% 01/15/28 171,000 167,383 0.66
68,000 ENTEGRIS ESCROW CORP 5.95% 06/15/30 61,868 65,702 0.26
170,000 ENTEGRIS INC 3.625% 05/01/29 160,442 145,742 0.58
58,000 EQM MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP 7.5% 06/01/27 56,985 58,069 0.23
140,000 EUROFINS SCIENTIFIC SE 6.75% 23-PERP 150,462 154,423 0.61
120,000 FAURECIA SE 2.75% 02/15/27 110,108 116,026 0.46
100,000 FAURECIA SE 3.75% 06/15/28 77,346 96,202 0.38
200,000 FIBER BIDCO SPA 11% 10/25/27 191,545 236,100 0.94
66,000 FORD MOTOR CO 4.75% 01/15/43 70,364 51,595 0.20
104,000 FORD MOTOR CO 6.1% 08/19/32 104,000 101,868 0.40
260,000 FORD MOTOR CREDIT CO LLC 3.25% 09/15/25 306,618 272,818 1.08
28,000 Egigisgg TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTU 6.5% 27.207 27.139 0.11
113,000 g(-)sg;%ssslgiﬁg?PORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTU 114,293 115,859 0.46
167,000 FTAI INFRA ESCROW HOLDINGS LLC 10.5% 06/01/27 159,283 167,729 0.67
282,000 FULL HOUSE RESORTS INC 8.25% 02/15/28 287,982 261,118 1.04
190,000 GCILLC 4.75%10/15/28 190,028 166,441 0.66
211,000 %SEQZN;T LEASE INC / GLOBAL NET LEAS 3.75% 211,000 178,109 0.71
89,000 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER CO/THE 5.25% 04/30/31 88,061 76,486 0.30
61,000 GRAPHIC PACKAGING INTL LLC 3.75% 02/01/30 52,287 52,832 0.21
76,000 GRAY ESCROW Il INC5.375% 11/15/31 76,000 57,819 0.23
327,000 GRAY TELEVISION INC 4.75% 10/15/30 323,078 239,869 0.95
283,000 HADRIAN MERGER SUB INC 8.5% 05/01/26 261,864 236,055 0.94
200,000 HERENS HOLDCO SARL 4.75% 05/15/28 200,000 164,252 0.65
77,000 HESS MIDSTREAM OPERATIONS LP 4.25% 02/15/30 77,000 67,597 0.27
54,000 HESS MIDSTREAM OPERATIONS LP 5.125% 06/15/28 49,442 50,945 0.20
166,000 HLFFIN. SARL LLC 4.875% 06/01/29 152,518 121,731 0.48
126,000 (H)?V/V/J—Tg%M; DSTREAM ENERGY PARTNERS LLC 6. 75% 125,299 122,936 0.49
200,000 HT TROPLAST GMBH 9.25% 07/15/25 224,280 210,783 0.84
180,000 HUDBAY MINERALS INC 6.125% 04/01/29 180,421 167,055 0.66
252,000 11-VI INC 5% 12/15/29 248,391 229,106 0.91
200,000 ILIAD SA5.375% 06/14/27 210,550 217,928 0.87
229,000 10N TRADING TECHNOLOGIES SARL 5.75% 05/15/28 232,883 196,364 0.78
82,000 IRON MOUNTAIN INC 4.875% 09/15/27 81,458 77,453 0.31
119,000 IRON MOUNTAIN INC 5.25% 07/15/30 102,355 107,847 0.43
72,000 JANE STREET GROUP / JSG FIN. INC 4.5% 11/15/29 70,347 64,701 0.26
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92,000 JELD-WEN INC 4.875% 12/15/27 74,531 74,686 0.30
151,000 KOHL*"S CORP 3.375% 05/01/31 112,045 111,699 0.44
79,000 LABL ESCROW ISSUER LLC 10.5% 07/15/27 74,954 75,258 0.30
79,000 LABL INC5.875%11/01/28 74,506 71,373 0.28
208,000 LABL INC 8.25% 11/01/29 201,564 174,330 0.69
37,000 LAMAR MEDIA CORP 3.625% 01/15/31 32,112 31,497 0.13
56,000 LEVEL 3FIN. INC 3.4%03/01/27 51,348 48,318 0.19
125,000 LGI HOMES INC 4% 07/15/29 108,439 100,991 0.40
184,000 LIBERTY INTERACTIVE LLC 8.25% 02/01/30 165,067 86,438 0.34
136,000 LIFE TIME INC 5.75% 01/15/26 140,151 130,878 0.52
200,000 LORCA TELECOM BONDCO SA 4% 09/18/27 211,605 199,622 0.79
130,000 LOTTOMATICA SPA 9.75% 09/30/27 129,942 149,843 0.59
125,000 LPL HOLDINGS INC 4.375% 05/15/31 125,384 109,588 0.44
126,000 IégsisA/'I:?LGANTIS HOLDINGS LLC / VICTRAFIN 7.75% 122,587 114,521 0.45
111,000 MACY*S RETAIL HOLDINGS LLC 5.875% 04/01/29 98,528 103,816 0.41
110,000 MAGIC MERGECO INC 7.875% 05/01/29 85,454 82,913 0.33
90,000 gg\%%;é OIL & GAS OPERATING LLC / MAGNOLIA 6% 88,839 87.165 0.35
100,000 MARKS & SPENCER PLC 3.75% 05/09/26 144,244 113,480 0.45
81,000 MATCH GROUP HOLDINGS 11 LLC 5.625% 02/15/29 78,925 76,234 0.30
205,000 MODIVCARE ESCROW ISSUER INC 5% 10/01/29 198,237 177,937 0.71
309,000 MOZART DEBT MERGER SUB INC 5.25% 10/01/29 300,415 260,265 1.03
33,000 NAVIENT CORP 4.875% 03/15/28 29,040 29,101 0.12
15,000 NAVIENT CORP 5.5% 03/15/29 14,750 13,273 0.05
96,000 NAVIENT CORP 5.625% 08/01/33 71,392 75,430 0.30
200,000 NETFLIX INC 3.625% 05/15/27 231,573 213,538 0.85
55,000 NEWELL BRANDS INC 6.625% 09/15/29 55,000 55,644 0.22
45,000 NEWS CORP 3.875% 05/15/29 40,976 40,149 0.16
107,000 NEXSTAR BROADCASTING INC 4.75% 11/01/28 108,634 95,634 0.38
317,000 (N)g&OEll\ﬂEZRéSY OPERATING LLC / NGL ENERGY FIN 7.5% 317,000 299,870 1.19
200,000 NOMAD FOODS BONDCO PLC 2.5% 06/24/28 159,150 186,628 0.74
89,000 NORDSTROM INC 5% 01/15/44 85,029 59,942 0.24
150,000 NORTONLIFELOCK INC 6.75% 09/30/27 148,450 152,136 0.60
186,000 OCCIDENTAL PETROLEUM CORP 6.375% 09/01/28 186,123 193,341 0.77
200,000 ORGANON FIN. 1 LLC5.125% 04/30/31 164,688 179,311 0.71
34,000 OWENS & MINOR INC 4.5% 03/31/29 27,795 27,746 0.11
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68,000 OWENS & MINOR INC 6.625% 04/01/30 61,700 60,259 0.24
91,000 OWL ROCK CORE INCOME CORP 7.75% 09/16/27 91,118 91,558 0.36
240,000 PCF GMBH 4.75% 04/15/26 287,280 222,312 0.88
236,000 ﬁgisU/SZSgINTERMEDIATE HOLDING 111 CORP 8% 227,656 180,311 0.72
74,000 PENNYMAC FIN. SERVICES INC 5.75% 09/15/31 62,320 62,404 0.25
100,000 PICARD GROUPE SAS 3.875% 07/01/26 98,819 98,885 0.39
200,000 PINNACLE BIDCO PLC 6.375% 02/15/25 231,796 224,700 0.89
73,000 POST HOLDINGS INC 4.5% 09/15/31 64,526 62,920 0.25
177,000 gg;gisglLOANS LLC /7 QUICKEN LOANS CO-1S 3.875% 164,697 144,400 0.57
224,000 ROYAL CARIBBEAN CRUISES LTD 11.625% 08/15/27 223,749 237,731 0.94
81,000 ROYAL CARIBBEAN CRUISES LTD 9.25% 01/15/29 81,000 85,764 0.34
67,000 RYAN SPECIALTY GROUP LLC 4.375% 02/01/30 60,608 60,459 0.24
100,000 SCHAEFFLER AG 3.375% 10/12/28 78,875 98,296 0.39
52,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW I'1 INC 3.875% 01/15/29 50,113 43,506 0.17
150,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW I'l INC 5.375% 01/15/31 150,171 119,673 0.48
79,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW INC 5.875% 07/15/27 80,745 70,216 0.28
98,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN 4.125% 01/15/31 82,568 82,488 0.33
268,510 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN 9.625% 12/01/32 319,319 304,402 1.21
161,000 SERVICE CORP INTERNATIONAL/US 3.375% 08/15/30 148,737 135,530 0.54
133,000 gZE/SlI-I/OZMgES LP / SHEA HOMES FUNDING CORP 4.75% 134,284 115,204 0.46
169,000 SIRIUS XM RADIO INC 4% 07/15/28 169,000 149,903 0.60
68,000 SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORP 5.5% 04/15/27 60,531 64,092 0.25
107,000 SLM CORP 3.125% 11/02/26 94,264 94,609 0.38
90,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY CO 4.75% 02/01/32 90,570 79,086 0.31
107,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY CO 5.375% 03/15/30 107,000 99,930 0.40
43,000 ES}E(IJZI%OYALTY CAYMAN LTD / SPIRIT IP CAYM 8% 42,355 44,015 0.17
96,000 SPRINGLEAF FIN. CORP 5.375% 11/15/29 99,711 84,185 0.33
382,000 STANDARD INDUSTRIES INC/NJ 3.375% 01/15/31 346,721 303,874 1.21
122,000 ggg?;,;gMg;\TERIALS LLC /7 SUMMIT MATERIALS 5.25% 109,623 114,704 0.46
299,000 SUNOCO LP / SUNOCO FIN. CORP 4.5% 04/30/30 286,199 266,880 1.06
81,000 SURGERY CENTER HOLDINGS INC 10% 04/15/27 80,591 83,125 0.33
75,000 SYNEOS HEALTH INC 3.625% 01/15/29 72,214 60,832 0.24
127,000 gﬁliligsggs ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS 5.5% 124,500 117,288 0.47
128,000 g)'gblaiséis ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS EN 6% 126,196 121,763 0.48
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TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS EN 6%

146,000 09/01/31 127,425 131,545 0.52
100,000 TELECOM ITALIA SPA/MILANO 1.625% 01/18/29 104,428 82,678 0.33
100,000 TELECOM ITALIA SPA/MILANO 2.875% 01/28/26 107,111 99,496 0.39
206,000 TENET HEALTHCARE CORP 6.125% 06/15/30 206,000 200,111 0.79
210,000 TERRAFORM POWER OPERATING LLC 4.75% 01/15/30 211,760 189,547 0.75
200,000 TEVA PHARMACEUT ICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS 3.75% 213,548 196,872 0.78
05/09/27
200,000 I?XQSPOAHSEgSSEgSICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS 231,600 187,696 0.75
200,000 ZE\5/;2 (P);IﬁglﬁgEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS 1 221,919 213,641 0.85
78,000 THOR INDUSTRIES INC 4% 10/15/29 63,780 64,956 0.26
185,000 TRANSDIGM INC 4.875% 05/01/29 178,311 166,600 0.66
77,000 UNIVISION COMM. INC 7.375% 06/30/30 76,581 75,406 0.30
100,000 VALLOUREC SA 8.5% 06/30/26 110,200 109,833 0.44
100,000 VERALLIASA1.875%11/10/31 86,900 87,362 0.35
100,000 VERISURE HOLDING AB 7.125% 02/01/28 108,650 109,010 0.43
110,000 VERISURE HOLDING AB 9.25% 10/15/27 105,936 128,280 0.51
275,000 VICTORIA*S SECRET & CO 4.625% 07/15/29 241,215 228,872 0.91
200,000 VILLADUTCH BIDCO BV 9% 11/03/29 197,505 208,249 0.83
187,000 WATCO COS LLC / WATCO FIN. CORP 6.5% 06/15/27 184,230 176,274 0.70
160,000 WP/AP TELECOM HOLDINGS 111 BV 5.5% 01/15/30 180,576 146,065 0.58
212,000 WYNDHAM DESTINATIONS INC 6.625% 07/31/26 220,994 210,234 0.83
100,000 ZFFIN. GMBH 5.75% 08/03/26 108,166 109,291 0.43
22,117,556 20,589,670 81.72
1,950 BECTON DICKINSON AND CO 103,167 97,503 0.39
2,885 CHART INDUSTRIES INC 144,480 159,252 0.63
247,647 256,755 1.02
24,666,731 23,122,492 91.76
2,066,743 8.24
25,189,235 100.00
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT T ARY 31, 2023

(Expressed in United States dollars)

January 31, 2023 Jumumry 31, 2022

Assets
ash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 8) g 1107697 & -
Finarcial assets st fair value trough profit or loss (Motes 3 and E) 23,122,492 32,630,208
Unrealised gain on forward currency contracts (Note B) 1,490,639 1,464,934
Interest accnml 368,907 438,056
Receivable from imvestments sold 412295 611,404
Other assets 4,362 -

Total assets 5 26,506,392 g 35,165,602
Liabilities
Payable for investments purchased 13 552,521 £ 380,173
Unrealised loss on forward currency contracts (Mote 8) 582,281 1,160,217
Irvestment maragement fee payable (MNote 4) 51,440 69,651
Redemptions payable 42,534 -
Distributor foc payable (Mot 4) 31,069 45,922
Administration fee payable (Note 4) 11,500 9,847
Agent fee payable (Note 4) 13,326 18,009
Audit fee payable 22,521 67,000
Custody fee payable (Mote 4) 1,345 1,351
Trustee fee payable (Note 4) 5,328 3,781
et bank overdraft 525 60,029
Oither fee payable 2,767 62

Liabilities {excluding net assets attributable to Unithaoldars) 1317157 1,816,972
Met assets attributable to Unitholders 25 189,233 33,348,830

Total labilities ] 26,506,352 $ 35,165,602

Approved for issuance on behalf of FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, not in its
individual capacity but solely as Trustee to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DIAM
Cayman Trust by:

Jeowvy Mateum Date: June 22, 2023

Raonnie Cuthbert

Approved for issuance on behalf of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd., not in its individual capacity but
solely as Manager to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by:

Singad Wagner Date: June 22, 2023
Karla Bodden

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4
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L HIGH YIELD BOND D CURRENCY SELECTION
ERIES TR OF DIAM CAYMAN TRU

H VE INCOM

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Year ended Year ended
January 31,2023 Jamuwary 31,2022

Inves tment income/{lasges)
Interest from financial assets at fir value through

profit or kess (Mate 5) 5 1,585457 5 22T.7T3%
Mt change in unrealised depreciation on financial

assets at fair valoe through profit or loss (706, 705) (4,240,154)
Met change in unrealised appreciation on forward currency contracts 03,541 1,251,858
Met realised gain/{loss) on forward cumency contracts and foreign

exchange transactions 387,015 (2,439,154)
Met realised (JossVgain on financial assets ai fair valae through

profit or kss (3,951,326) 2,650,374
Dividend income - 0,558
Oither income - 39,430

Todal income {2,081,918) (456,371}
Expenses
Invesiment management fee (MNote 4) 212,430 153,230
Distributor fiee (Mote 4) 137,574 220425
Administration fee (Note 4) 46,748 47681
Custody fee (Mote 4) 3,719 M5
Agent fee (Mote 4} 25,856 86,441
Trustee fee (MNote 4) 36,778 BIF
Audit fee 67,440 55,508
Other expenses 14,195 68,126

Total operating expenses 385,140 859,834

Met operating losses [2667,058) (1,356,205)
Finance cosis
Distributions to Unithalders (Mot 6) (1,961,735) (5,632,400}
Taxation
Withholding tax (3,173) {3,2500)

Met decrease in net assets resulfing from operations

attributable to Unitholders 5 {4,631,586) § (6,591 ,855)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

.
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIE LA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

(Expressed in United States dollars)
Net assels
attribatable to
Unitholders
Balance as at January 31, 2021 5 63,390,679
Units subscrbed during the year 486,796
Units redeemed during the year (23,536,790)
Met decrease in net assets from operations attributable to Unitholders
during the vear (6,991,855)
Balance as at January 31, 2022 33,348,830
Units subseribed during the year 79,652
Units redecmed during the year (3,807,261)
Met decrease in net assets from operations attributable to Unitholders
during the year {4.531,986)
Balance as at January 31, 2023 £ 25,189,235

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

- -
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GLOBA ELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023
{Expressed in United States dollars)
Year cnded Yeor ended
Janmary 31, 2023 January 31, 1022

Cash flows from operating activities
Met decrease in net aseets resulling from operations

aitributzhle to Unitholders H (4,631,5986) 5 (6,991,853)
Adjustments o reconcile pet decrease in net asset resulting from

operations 1o net cash provided by /{used in) operating activities:

Distributions to Linitholders 1,961,735 2,652 400
Met realised losses{ging) on financial assets at fair vadus though profit or loss 3,951,326 (2,630,374)
Met change in unrealised deprecistion on financial assets at fair vaboe though
profit or kss 06, TS 4,240,184
Met change in unrealised dep reciation on forward currency contracts (603 ,641) (1,251.868)
Met aceretion of discount on investments (30.544) (7.893)
Changes in assets and liabilities relsted to operations:
Drecrease in margin - 240,000
Drecrense in interest nocral & 149 342 596
{Incrense)/decresie in other aaets {4,362} 1,850
{Decrease)increase in net bank overdradt (59, 50:40) 60,029
Drecrense in investment management fee payable (18,241} (T2397)
Drecrense in distributor foe pay able (14,853) (20,415
Decrease in agent fise pay able (4,683) {8,006)
Increase/{decrense) in administration fiee pay able 1,633 {1.584)
Decrease in audil fee pavable {44,479 (8,000)
Increase in trustes fes pay able 1,547 566
Decrense in custody .Fuepa}'a]:!k (&) {l.{ﬁﬂ-‘_l
Increasefdecrease) In other foe pavable 2,005 {41,562)
Met cash provided by sed in) operating activities 1,300,441 (537.402)
Cash Mows from investing activities
Purchases of financial assets at fuir value through profit or loss { 19,688,095 (49,051.544)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24,941,184 74,339,093
Met cnsh provided by investing activities 3,253,085 25,287,549
Cash Mows from financing activities
Subseriptions recsived from Unitholders T9652 456, T
Redemptions paid to Unithalders {3,564,726) {23,516, 790)
Distributions pasd to Unitholders {1,961,755) (5,632 400)
Met cash used in financing activities (5,446,825 (28,682,394)
Met change in cash and cash equivalents 1,107,697 (3,932.24T)
Cash and cash equivalents a1 beginning of v car - 3,832,247
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of year 5 1,107,697 5 -
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest received 5 1,664,347 5 2,902,870
Taxes paid 5 5,807 5 3,250

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

-7-
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

1. Orpanization

DIAM Cayman Trust (the “Trust™) is an exempted unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant
to declaration of trust (the “Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 2011, The Trust commenced operations on June 29, 2011.
The Trust is registered under the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act with effect from July 15, 2001, The Trust's place
of business is 25 Main Street, P.O. Box 694, Grand Cayman KY 1-1107, Cayman Islands,

The Trust filed a securities registration statement on July 8, 2011 pursuant to the Financial Instrument Exchange Law
with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau and a registration statement pursuant to the Investment Trust
Law with the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

Global High Yield Bond Fund Cusrency Selection (the “Class Fund™) is a series trust of the Trust. The investment
objective of the Class Fund is to seek high current income and the opportunity for capital appreciation mainly though
investment in a diversified portfolio of global high yield bonds. The Class Fund will follow a bottom-up approach
based on a fundamental analysis when selecting global high yield bonds.

1. Signific li

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set ot below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation: The financial statements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Trustee to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class Fund®s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Motes 2, 8 and 9.

All references 1o net assets throughout this document refier 1o net assets atiributable to holders of Participating Units
unless otherwise stated. Met assets per unit information as disclosed in Mote 7 has been determined as total assets less
total liahilitics divided by the number of outstanding units of each class of participating units.

{a) Standards and amendments fo existing standards effeciive February 1, 2022

There are no standards, amendments to standards or inferpredations that are effective for annual periods beginning on
February 1, 2022 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund,

(bl New stavdards, emendeents and interpretarions issued burt not gfective for the financial year beginning February
1, 2022 and not early adepred

A number of new standards, amendments o standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning

after February 1, 2022, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are
expected to have a material effect on the financial staterents of the Class Fand.,
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2013

Financial assets and liabiliti h profit or

fa) Classification

Assets

The Class Fund classifies its investments based on both the Class Fund®s business model for managing these financial
assels and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that information to assess the assets” performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash flows of the Class
Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, thess securities are neither held for the purpose of
collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of
contraciual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model’s objective. Consequently, all
investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Liabilities
Derivative confracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

The Class Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager (Mote 4) and Trustee (Note 4) to evaluate the information
about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with their related financial information, for the
purposes of making investment management decisions,

i) Recognition, derecognition and measirement

The Class Fund records security transactions on a trade date basis, recognizing the cost or sales proceeds of securifies
sold ar purchased on a first-in-first-out basis. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Class Fund commits to purchase or sell the invesiment. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Class
Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ewnership.

Subsequent te initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ane measured at fair value.
Gains and logses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they anse.

fe}  Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trancaction
berween market participants at the measurement date, The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quotations provided by the market on which the
securities are traded on the last day of trading in the period. The Class Fund wtilises the last traded market price for
financial assets where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread, In circumstances where the last traded price
is not within the bid-ask spread, management will determine the peint within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair value,

Investments or other assets for which market quotations are not readily available from recognized price vendors will
be valued by prices fummished by investment services firms (such as brokers, dealers or other entities) or at their fair
value as determined in good faith in accordance with the procedures adopted by the Trustee with the advice from the
Sub-Trvestment Manager (Note 4). Premiums and discounts are amortised on an effective interest yield method to the
maturity of the investments to which they relate.
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LOBAL HIGH YIE
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

2. Significant accou lici ntinu
{d)l Transfers berween levels of the fair value herarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting
period.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all deposits
with original terms to maturity of not more than 3 months, All of the Class Fund's cash and cash equivalent balance
as at January 31, 2023 is maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Mote 4).

Margin: Margin includes margin cash held against the Class Fund®s currency forwards.

Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Interest income and interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or less: Interest is recognised on o
lime-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. Inferest income inchedes interest from cash and cash

equivalents, Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities.

Income taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are ne income, estate, fransfer sales or other
Cayman lsland taxes payable by the Class Fund. As a result, no provision for income faxes has been made in the
financial statements. Interest income eamed by the Class Fund is generally subject to foreign withholding tax af source.
Withhalding taxes on interest is shown as a separate line item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The Clazs Fund invests in securities issued by entitics which are virtually all domiciled in countries other than the
Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable to noneresidents, such as the Class Fund. Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined
on a self assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Class Fund's brokers on a
“withholding™ basis,

At January 31, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. However,
there is a risk that foreign tax authorities will begin secking to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Class Fund,
without giving any prior waming and possibly, on a retrospective basis. Any retrospective enforcement may result in
a substantial loss to the Class Fund.

Distributions: Distributions to the Unitholders are classified as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (Mote 6).

Oifsetting financial instruments: Financial xssets and lizbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position where the Class Fund currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Forward eurrency and spot foreign exchange contracts: Forward currency and spod foreign exchange contracts are
carried at fair value, The gain or loss on open forward curmency contracts is calculated as the difference between the

contracted rate and the rate 1o close out the contract. Met realised gainef{losses) on forward currency contracts and
foreign exchange transactions in the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes net gains and losses on contracts
that have been settled or offset by ather contracts with the same counterparty. Unrealised gain or loss on open forward
currency and spot foreign exchange contracts is caleulated as the difference between the contract rate and the applicable
forward rate, based upon rates reparted in published sources on the day of valation, applied to the face amount of the
forward contract.

-10-
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FLUND
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

2. Significant accounti in

Translation of foreign currency amounts: Assels and labilities denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dollar (“US dollar'™) are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign cusrency
income and expenditure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction, Gains and losses
on foreign currencies are inclided in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the vear in which they arise, The
Class Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates
en investments from fluctuations ansing from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are
included with the net realised and unrealized gans/{losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

Functional and presentation currency: Items included in the Class Fund's financial statements are measured using
the US dollar (the “functional currency™), as the Class Fund primarily invests in US dallar denominated investments.
In addition, the Class Fund has adopted the US dollar as its presentation ¢urmency.

Participating Units: The Class Fund issues seven classes of units (Mote 7) which are redeemable at the Unithalder’s
option and do not have identical rights. Such Participating Units are classified a3 financial liasbilities. The Participating
Units can be put back to the Class Fund by the Unitholder at any business day for cash equal to a proportionate share
of the Class Fund's net assetz. The Participating Units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercised their right to put the unit back to the Class Fund.

Redemptiong pavahle: Redemptions, whether expressed as dollars or Units, are recognized as redemptions payable
when each of the dollar or Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. As a resull, redemplions
paid after the end of the year, but based upon the year-end net asset values, are reflected as redemptions payable.

Re investments sold and pavable for investments purchased: These amounts represent receivables
for securities sold and payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not vet settled or delivered
on the statement of financial position date respectively. The receivables from investments sold balance is held for
collection.

These amounis are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. At each reporting
date, the Class Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts receivable from investments sald at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the
reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Class Fund shall measure the
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-menth expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankrupicy or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases to the point that it 15 consideéred to be
credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based an the gross camying amount adjusted for the loss allowance.
A significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is more than 30 days
past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.
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HIGH YIELD BOND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

FINAMCIA ATEME

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

ancial a at fair value throu rofit or bess

Financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss are comprised of convertible bonds (0.69%) (2022: 0.73%),
floating-rate notes (9,15%0) (2022: 5.05%), ordinary bonds (89.05%) (2022: 93.58%) and shares (1.11%6) (2022:
01.64%), The issuers of these securities operate in a diverse range of industries with a significant concentration of US
issued securities {64.53%) (2022: 66.72%).

Investments include securities restricted in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, which allows
for resale of such security among certain qualified institutional buyers. The total cost and fair value of the Rule 1444
Securities owned at January 31, 2023 is £13,640,863 and $12,698 289 (2022: $158.932,506 and £18,484,477) which
represents 50.41% (2022: 55.43%) of net assets at January 31, 2023.

Investments range in maturity dates from March 15, 2024 to Janmary 1, 2049 (2022: April 15, 2022 to June, 2170)
and interest rates range from 1.625% to 13,25% (2022 0.00% to 12.00%) as of January 31, 2023

i ignificant tion

Disiribotor

On July 5, 2011, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreement was entered between Queensgate Bank and Trust
Company Ltd. and Mizuho Securities Co,, Ltd,, under which that party acts as Distributor of units in Japan subject to
terms and conditions, The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets attributable to the Japan Publicly Offiered
Units a fee of 0.51% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such classes of units of the Class Fund. During
the year ended January 31, 2023, the Class Fund ineurred distributor fiees of $137974 (2022: $220,425) of which
£31,069 (2022: £45 922) remains outstanding at year-end,

Trustee

On June 29, 2011, FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited became the trustee of
the Trust, Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Trustee has exclusive authority and overall responsibility for the Trust's
administration and management, which includes the responsibility for distribution and redemption of units in the Trust,
The Trustee has appointed Mizuho Bank (USA) unti] September 19, 2022 and Mizuho Trust & Banking {Luxembourg)
S§.A., effective September 20, 2022 to provide the day-to-day administration of the Class Fund.

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Value of the Units during the three
calendar months immediately preceding such quarter-end payable in US dollars in arrears within 30 days from the end
of each calendar quarter subject to a quarterly minimum fee of 53,750, During the year ended January 31, 2023, the
Class Fund incurred trustee fees of $56,778 (2022: $23,919) of which 35,328 (2022: $3,781) remains outstanding at
year-gnd.

Administration

The Trustes on behalf of the Trust has entered into an agreement with Mizuho Bank (USA) dated July 5, 201 1, under
which that party acts as Administrator to the Class Fund. For providing administration services to the Class Fund, the
Administrator receives an annual administration fee based on the average month end net asset value of the Class Fund
at maximum annual rates of 0.08%, subject (o a quarterly minimum of $11,250. The administration agreement with
Mizuho Bank (USA) was terminated lact September 19, 2022,

On September 20, 2022, the Trustee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with
Mizuho Trust & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A. under which, that party has been appointed 1o act as Administrator 1o
the Class Fund. For providing administration services to the Class Fund, the Administrator is entitled fo receive, out
of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the fee amount. The Administrators fee will
be calculated and acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended January 31, 2023, the Class
Fund incurred administration fiees of $46,748 (2022; $47,681) of which £11,500 (2022: $9,847) remains outstanding
at year-end.
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAVMAN TRUST

NOTES TO E

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

4. Significant apreements and transactions {continued)

Investment manager

Ascet Management One Co., Lid, (the “Investment Manager”) has been appointed as Investment Manager to the Trust
pursuant to the investment manzgement agreement dated July 8, 2011, pursuant to which the Investment Manager is
authorized to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets in each account, with full autherity and
at its discretion.

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive an annual fee of 0.755% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units and an annual fee of 0.47% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Won-Japan Publicly Offered Units payable quarterly in arrears. During the vear ended January 31,
2023, the Class Fund incurred investment management fees of £212,430 (2022; £363,230) of which $51,440 (2022:
£69.681) remains outstanding at yvear-end,

The Investment Manager has delegated certain responsibilities to Janus Capital Management LLC (the “Sub-
Investment Manager')

Custodian

Mizuho Bank (USA) (the “Custodian'™) has been appointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustee pursuant
tor & custody agrecment dated July 8, 2011, The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a
fee of 0.013% per annum of the net asset value, or such other fee as may be agreed between the Trustee and the
Custodian from time to time. During the vear ended January 31, 2023, the Class Fund incurred custody fees of 523,719
(2022; 534,504) of which $1,345 (2022: $1,351) remains outstanding af year-end.

Agent

Om July 5, 2011, the Agent Company Agreement was entered into between Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Lid, and Mizuho Securitics Co., Ltd. {the “Agent™). The Agent Company Agreement is an agrecment pursuant to
which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospectuses regarding the units of the
Class Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers” Association (“JSDA™), publicize the net asset value per unit and submit
the documents such as the financial statements and other documents to the JSDA. The Agent is entitled to receive a
fee of 0.20% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units of the Class Fund,
Druring the year ended January 31, 2023, the Class Fund incurred agent fees of 25,8356 (2022: $86,441) of which
£13,326 (2022: £18,009) remains cutstanding at vear-end.

Manager
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. (the “Manager™) entered into an agresment with the Trustee noted above
on 29 Jume 2001 and entered into the Supplemental Trost Deed dated 29 June 2011 with the Trustee,

The Manager prescribes managemnent of the Class Fund's assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fund. The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.01% per annum of the net asset
value subject to a quarterly minimum fee of $3,750, The Manager's fee will be accrued daily and caleulated based on the
net asset value as at the immediately preceding day of valuation (daily) and payable quarterly in arrears. The Manager fee
has been inchuded with the Investment Manager fee on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Position.

-13-
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

5. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or Inss

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is comprised of:

Year ended Year ended

January 31, 2013 Janwary 31, 2032
Investment income

Interest coupon 1 1,633,258 § 2,263,846
Accretion of discount T 184 77,198
Amortisation of premium (34985} {69,305}

S LT S
6. Distribuiions

Distributions shall be made at the discretion of the Trustee. The distributions will be made out of the sum of the total
net investment income (if any), the net realized capital gains (if any) and the increase in net unrealized capital gains
{if any) earned by each Class during the vear. Further, the Investment Manager may direct the Administrator on behalf
of the Trustee to pay distributions out of the capital of the Class Fund if considered necessary by the Investment
Manager to maintain a reasonable level of distributions for the Class Fund.

Dwring the year, the following disbursements were made:

Year ended Year ended

January 31, 2023 Jenuary 31,2022
Dhistribution paid fom HYAUDAUD 5 1616280 § 4,353,009
Dastabution paid from HYTPFYBRL - 168,727
Dastribution paid from HYJPYBS1 - 132,926
Distribution paid from HYITPYTFY = 79,533
Dstribution paid from HYUSDBRL 247,983 680,351
Distribution pid from HYLISDBS1 97452 217,824

3 1,961,755 1 5,632,400

7. Units in issue
Seven classes of Units are available for subscription, designated as follows:

Abbreviation Class Unit description and characteristics

HYUSDUSD  USD (USD hedged) (Mon-Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBRL USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDES!  USD (Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)
HYAUDAUD AUD (AUD hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYIPYIFY  JPY (JPY hedged) (Distribution)

HYIPYBSI JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution)

HYIPYBRL  JPY (BEL hedged) (Distribution)

- 14-
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HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURREN ELE
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

7. Units in issue (continped

The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) Class Units, USD
(Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and USD (USD hedged) (Non-Distribution)
Class Units by an investor is | Unit and in incremental amounts of 1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initial subscription
amount for the AUD (AUD hedged) (Distribution) Class Units by an investor is 1 Unit and in incremenial amounts of
1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initizl subseription amaunt for each of the JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket
hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and JPY (JPY hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and JPY (BRL hedged)
{Distribution) Class Units is ¥10,000 and in incrémental amounts of ¥1 thereafter,

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the Unitholders on each dealing day, at a redemption
price equal to the net asset value per unit as determined on such dealing day, provided that the redemption notice has
been received by the Trustes not less than 1 business days prios to the relevant dealing day.

Unit transactions during the year ended January 31, 2023 are as follows:

Net Asset
Value
Class Currency  Opening Units  Units Issued  Units Redeemed  Clasing Units per Linit
HYAUDALUD AUD 305,632 2,140 (85,631} 722,141 3108
HYLUSDERL UsD 512,848 2,150 (66,230) 448,768 10.11
HYLISDES] UsD 73,134 - {9, 886) 63,248 17.91
HYUSDUSD UsD 30481 40 (5,212} 25,309 146,28
Unit trangactions during the yvear ended January 31, 2022 are as follows:
Met Asset
Value
Class Currency  Opening Units  Units lssued  Units Redeemed  Clasing Units per Lnit
HYALUDALD AUD 1,101,182 4,450 (300,000 805,632 35.05
HYTPYBEL Y 301,563 4,254 (305,847) - -
HYIPYBS1 ey 102 047 - (192.947) - -
HYIPYTPY Y T3168 = (72,168) - -
HYUSDBRL usD 603,637 - (50, 789) 512,848 10,32
HYUSDES] usD 90,775 - {26,641) 73,134 21.05
HYUSDLUSD UsD 31,644 1,815 (2,978) 30481 16131

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units, In accordance with the objectives outlined in Naote |
and the risk management policies in Note 8, the Class Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received from
Unitholders into appropriate investrments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions, with such
liquidity being sugmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary. As of January
31, 2023, all units of the Class Fund were Reld by two Unitholders (2022: two Unitholders).

8. Financial risk management

in usi ial i :
The Class Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Class Fund’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Class Fund’s financial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward currency contracts to moderate certain risk exposures.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital, The maximum loss of capital on debt securities is limited
to the fair value of those positions. The maximum loss of capital on forward currency contracts is limited to the
netional contract values of those positions.
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financia ment (continned

Price risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to debt securities and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Class
Fund for which prices in the future are uncertain, Where non-monetary financial instruments are denominated in
currencies other than the USD, the price initially expressed in foreign eurrency and then converted into USD will also
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The “Currency risk” paragraph below sets out how this
component of price risk is managed and measured,

Derivatives include instruments and contracts the value of which is linked to one or more underlying securities,
financial benchmarks or indices. The value of a derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlying
asset. Many derivatives provide significantly more market exposure than the meney paid or deposited when the
transaction is entered into. A relatively small adverse market movement can result not only in the loss of the entire
investment, but may also expose the Class Fund te the possibility of a loss exceeding the original amount invested.
There can be no assurance that derivatives that the Class Fund wish to acguire will be made available at any particular
times on satisfactory terms or at all.

The Class Fund's policy is to manage price risk through diversification and seleetion of securities and other financial
instruments within specified limits set by the goveming decuments of the Class Fund. The Class Fund may engage
in over-the-counter foreign currency forward contracts for the account of the Class Fund.

The Investment Manager does not manage the Class Fund's investment strategy to track a benchmark or any ather
index. At January 31, 2023, the Class Fund's market risk is affected by three main components: changes in acteal
rmarkel prices, interest rate and foreign currency movements, If the market prices of the bond portfolio (excluding
forward contracts) at January 31, 2023 had increased by 10%% with all other variables held constant, this would have
increased net assets atiributable to Unitholders by approximately $2,312,249 (2022: 53,263,121} Conversely, if the
market prices of the bond portfolio at January 31, 2023 had decreased by 10%, this would have decreased net assets
attributable to Unitholders by approximately $2,312,249 (2022: $3,263,121).

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based upen the portfolio composition (excluding forward contracts) as at
Jamuary 31, 2023, The composition of the Class Fund's investment porifolio is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of January 31, 2023 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the
Class Fund's net assets in the future.

risk:
The Class Fund will have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates through investment of the Class Fund's
assets in investments denominated in currencies other than US dollars. The Class Fund intends to enter into currency
hedging transactions which are designed to reduce, but not eliminate exchange-rate risk and protect all or any part of
the assets from the currency depreciation against US dollars. While the Class Fund will aim to hedge the currency
exposure of the units to fluctuations between US dollars and the investment currency fully, the exposure will not
abways be 100%: hedged mainly because the future value of the relevant investments will change.

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are effected are highly volatile, highly specialised and highly
technical. Significant changes, including changes in liquidity and prices, can occur in such markets within very short
periods of time, often within minutes,
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SE TR

NOTES TO FINA
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financial risk management {continued)

. i inued):
At January 31, 2023, the Class Fund’s net assets and liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to Unithalders and
Class=specific forward currency contracts) denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

January 31, 2023 January 31, 2012
Amounts 10%0 sensitivity® Ampunts 10% sensitivity™
British Pound § (65,813) (6,581) 3 (31,496) (3,150)
Euro (2.619) (262) (234.448) (23,445)
5 (68,432 5 (265.944)

*At January 31, 2023, had the exchange rate between the non LS dollar and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10% with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets attributable to Unitholders
would amount o approximately as noted above, exeluding the impact of Class-specific forward currency contracts.

All other assets and liabilities are denominated in 1.5, Dallar, except for Class-specific forward currency contracts
considered below.

At January 31, 2023, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10% with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in US
dollar) is shown below.

MNAY impact of 10%

currency appreciation’
Cl.llr‘ﬂl!‘_h" depreciatio o affecied®
ALID 5-3553?3 AUDAUD, USDBS1, JFYBS1
ZAR 328238 IPYBSIL, USDBSI
BRL 4,313,132 USDRSI, USDERL, JFYBSL, JFYBRL

At January 31, 2022, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the US dellar increased or decreased by
10% with all ather variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in US
dellar) is shown below,

NAV impact of 10%

currency appreciation/
Curren affe u
AlUD i ALDALUD, USDBS1, IFYES1
ZAR 46,587 JPYBSI, USDBS]
BEL 514,762 USDES], USDBRL, JPYBS1, JPYBRL

*These sensitivity figures show the impact on the Class Fund's overall NAV and Net Income, However, the impact shown above
far each currency would only have an effect on the Classes affectsd as shown sbove and would not have any impact on the ather
Classes.

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's net currency position
on a daily basis.
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financial risk management (¢

Interest rate risk:

The value of fixed income assels may chamge based on interest rate fluctuations, Typically, when interest pates
increase, the value of ficed income assets tend to depreciate. On the contrary when interest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of the value of the fixed income asset will depend
on a number of factors including the maturity and conditions of issuance of the fixed income asset.

Except for the Class Fund's financial assets at fair valuee through profit or loss, substantially all assets and liabilities
have either interest rate repricing dates or maturity dates of less than & months. The Class Fund's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, is as follows:

Less than 1 Greater than  No repricing on
year Lto 5 years 5o 10 years 10 years maturity date Total
Janmwary 31, 2023 - 5332618 12,481,589 2,051,330 236,735 8 130112492
Janwary 31, 2022 240,067 6,953,070 22,859,860 2,367,621 08,590 § 32,631,208

At Jarmary 31, should interest rates have bowered by 100 basis points with all other variables remaining constant, the
increase in net assets attributable fo Unitholders for the vear would amount to approximately $1,396,55% (2022:
£3,127,160), arising substantially from the increase in market values of debt securities. If interest rates had risen by
100 basis points, the decrease in net assels would amount to approximately 1,151,887 (2022: £5,008,817). In
gccordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's overall interest sensitivity
on a daily basis.

Credit risk:
The Class Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other panty by failing fo discharge an obligation.

The main concentration to which the Class Fund iz exposed arises from the Class Fund®s investmenis in debi securities.
The Class Fund is also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents,
margin and other receivable balances, The Class Fund seeks to mitigate its exposure to eredit risk by placing its cash
balances and transacting its securities activity with large financial institations.

The Class Fund invests in global high vield bonds and other high yield fixed income securities to pursue income
generation. [t is possible that increased credit risk may prevent the investment ohjective of pursuing a high level of
income gain from being achieved. High yield fixed income securities and lower-rated fixed income securities are
securities rated below Baa by Moody's, BBB by Fitch or BEB by S&P. Lower-rated fixed income securities may be
below "investment grade” and face ongoing uncertainties and exposure to adverse business, financial or economic
conditions that could lead to the issuer's inability 1o meet timely interest and principal payments,

The lower ratings of certain securities held by the Class Fund reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer, or in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates,
may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Such securities camry a higher degree
of default risk which may affect the capital value of an investment.

The inability of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held by
the Class Fund. In the absence of a liquid trading market for cerfain securities, it may not be possible to establish the
fair value of such securities.
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A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financial ris iR niinued
Credit risk {continued):

The rating assigned to a security by Moody's, S&P or Fitch does not reflect an assessment of the volatility of the
security’s market value or the liguidity of the investment. A security may not necessarily be realised when ifs rating is
reduced below its rating at the time of purchase. Portfolio by rating category for each class of debt securities is as

fesl bowrs:
January 31,2023 Janvary 31,2022
e ol e ol

Fair Value  Portfolio Fair Value Partfolio
Ordinary bonds
BEBE 213,538 0.92% 252,757 0.77%
BEE- 201,146 0587 421,004 1.20%
BB+ 3.043,548 13,1654 5,085,642 15,59%
BE 2004465 12,56% 3,270,966 10,03%
BBE- 4,433,829 19 18%% 4,352,508 13,46%
B+ 2712007 11.73% 2437484 T.44%
B 3,180,254 15.76% 5924504 18.16%
B- 2311422 10,0004 2 546,080 7.80%%
OCC+ 694,337 3.00% 4,139,956 12.65%%
oo 398 560 2.59% 1,831,451 5.61%
COC- 290, 564 1.28% - 0.00%%
MR * - 000 243 569 0.75%
Total ardinary bonds 20,589,670 §9.05% 30,536,441 93,589
Floating rate nofes

- 000 206,664 0.63%

BEE- 206,233 085 - 00085
BE+ 695, 540,00 300% 884,534 2.71%
BE 483,379.00 209 203,868 0.66%
BE- T305E0000 3.16% - 0.008%
B - LLLE ) 240,067 0.74%
MR * - [ 101,373 0.31%
Total Noating rate notes 2,116,141 G15% 1,646,508 5.05%
Convertible bonck
CCC 159,926 069% - 000
MR * - 0005 239,669 0.73%
Todal convertilde bonds 159,926 [ 130,669 0.T3%
Shares
MR * 256,755 L11% 208,550 D%
Total shares 256,755 L11% 208,550 0.64%%

23,112 492 100.00%% 32,631,208  100.00%

* The Investment Manager reviews and monitors the eredit quality of unrated debt investments continuously, As at
January 31, 2023, the Investment Manager believes that these investments are of good credit quality.

Cash and cash equivalents which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist primarily of call balances
and placements with an original maturity of 3 months or less from placement. The cash equivalents are placed with
Mizuho Trust & Banking Cayman Islands by the Custodian (which has an S&F credit rating of A- (2022: A-)) and
thus are not considered to pose a significant credit risk. Margin is held with JP Mergan (which has an S&F credit
rating of A= (2022: A<)) through a sub=-custody arrangement and is also not considered to pose a significant eredit risk.

T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL E!:ATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

§._Financial risk management {continued)

Credit risk (continued):

All transactions are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers, The risk of default is considered minimal,
a5 delivery of securities sold is anly made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.

The counterpartics to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derivative contracts are major financial institutions.
Management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fund.

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default, Management considers both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining
any expected credit loss. Management considers the probability of default to be close to zere as the counterparties
have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. Az a result, no loss allowanee has been
recognised based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be whelly insignificant to the
Clasz Fund,

In accordance with the Class Fund’s policy, the Sub-Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's credit position
on & daily basis,

Liquidity risk: .
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to seftle s
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Class Fund may periodically invest in derivative contracts and debt securities that are traded over the counter, As
a result, the Class Fund may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments af &n amount close
to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirements, or be able to respond to specific events such as deterioration in
the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

Asg at January 31, 2023 and 2022, all the unrealised gains and bosses on forward currency contracts mature within 90
days or less,

Participating Units are redeemed on demand at the Unitholder's option. However, the Trustes does not foresse that
this contractual maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments
typically retain them for the medium to Jong term,

As at January 31, 2023 and 2022, all other liabilities of the Class Fund had a contractual maturity of less than one
menth. The Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's liquidity position on an ongeing basis.

Custody risk:

The Class Fund may invest directly or indirectly, in markets where custodial and/or settlement systems are not fully
developed. The assets of the Class Fund which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted fo sub-
custodians, in circumstances where the use of such sub-custodians is necessary, may be exposed to certain risks. Such
risks include, but are not limited to, a non-true delivery versus payment setilement, a physical market, and as a
consequence the circulation of forged securities, poor information in regards to corporate actions, registrafion process
that impacts the availability of the securities, lack of appropriate legalifiscal infrastructure and lack of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository.

-3 -
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD ROND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

TES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financial risk management (continued)

i tinued):

The Class Fund maintains a custody account with its prime broker and primary custodian, Mizuho Bank (USA)
(“Mizuho™). Although the Trustee monitors Mizuho, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there is no
guarantee that Mizuho, or any other custodian that the Class Fund may use from time fo time, will not become
insalvent, While both the 11.5. Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect
customer property in the event of a failure, insolvency or liquidation of a broker-dealer, there is no certainty that, in
the event of & failure of a broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not incur losses
due to its assets being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because
substantially all of the Class Fund's assets are custodied with one custodian, such losses could be significant and could
materially impair the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective.

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
lesels:

«  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

+  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or Hability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) {level 2).

+  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest bevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair valye measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unchservable inputs, that measurement is a level
3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class Fund
considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Trust's financial assets and liabilities (by class)

measured at fair value:

As at January 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Astels
Convertible bonds 5 = 1 159926 % - 5 159,926
Floating rale notes - 2,116,141 - 2,116,141
Ordinary bonds - 20,388,670 . 20,589,670
Shares 256,755 - - 156,755
Unrealized gain on forward

CUTTency contracts - 1,490,639 - 1,450,639
Total ngsets b3 256,755 % 24,356,376 % - £ 24613131
Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward

CUITen<y comracts 5 = 5 [582,281) % - 5 (582,281)
Total Habilities £ - £ (5822813 % - 5 (582,281)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financial risk management {continued)

Fair v discl

As at January 3, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tutal
Assets
Convertible bonds 5 - k3 139,669 § . 5 239,669
Floating rate notes - 1,646,508 - 1,646,508
Ordinary bonds - 30,536,441 - 30,536,441
Shares 208,590 - - 208,590
Unrealized gain on forward

cumency conlracts - 1,464,934 = 1,464,934
Total assets b 2&291] £ 313,837.352 § - g 34,096,142
Liabilities
Urrealized loss on forward

currency contracts £ - 5 (1,160,217) § L (1,160,217
Tatal liahilitics H - 5 (L160ZITY § - £ (1,160,21T)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations of altermative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.
These include most corporate and convertible bonds, certain non-US sovercign obligations, mertgage backed
securities and some over-the-counter derivatives, As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets and’or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and‘or nen-
transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Invesimenis classified within level 3 have significant unobservable mputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all, As
ohservable prices are not available for these securities, the Class Fund has used valuation techniques to derive the fair
value. At January 31, 2023 and 2022, the Class Fund held no level 3 investments.

i Amoun ject fo master netting arran ts and similar Erments:
The Class Fund is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the Statement of
Financial Position to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities. These assets and liabilities include certain
financial instrumenis and derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement,
or similar agreement. As at January 31, 2023 and 2022, the Class Fund had derivative assets and lishilities that are
subject to three master netting arrangements with its derivative counterparties.

The Class Fund and its counterparties have elecied to setile all transactions on a gross basis however, each party has
the option to settle all open contracts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party. Per the terms of the
master netting agreement, an event of default includes the following:

«  failure by a party to make payment when due;

s failure by a party to perform any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment) if such failore is not
remedied within 30 days after notice of such failure is given 1o the party;

+  bankrupicy.

The Fund has elected not to offset fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral receivables and payables against
fair value amounts recognized for derivative positions executed with the same counterparty under the same master
nelting arrangement.

e
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A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

8. Financia nagement (eontinued

The following tables present the Class Fund's financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements. The tables are presented by type of financial instrument.

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master neffing arrangements and similar agreements:

A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of  Met amounts of
recognised recognised financial assets
financial assets financial presented in the

liabilities set-off statement of
in the statement  financial position

of financial
position
Description
2023
Forward currency contracts 5 1490639 - 51,490,639
5 1,490,639
2022
Forward currency contracts § 1464934 - T 1464934
5 1,464,934
C=AB I E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amount Het amount
financial assets not set-off in the statement of
presented in the financial position
statement of N1} and D(ii) i) Collateral
financial position Financial received
[nstruments
Counterparty
2023
Counterparty 1 £ 126 b4 726 § - % .
Counterparty 2 3,612 945 - 2667
Counterparty 3 811 811 - -
Counterparty 4 51 51 - .
Counterparty 3 1,485,439 443,657 - 1,041,782
£ 1,490,630 b 446,190 b - 8 1,044,449
.23
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management (continued

C=AB o E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the et amount
financial assats statement of financial position
presented in the INi) and Dii) Vi) Collateral
statement of Financial received
financial position Instruments
Counterparty
022
Counterparty 1 5 225 5 25 % - 5 -
Counterparty 2 109,646 1,108 - 108,538
Counterparty 3 6,122 6,122 - -
Counterparty 4 2,189 327 - 1,862
Counterparty 3 5,628 4,739 - 280
Counterparty 6 1,341,124 1,139,549 - 201,575
5 1,464,934 £ 1,152,070 % - & 311564
A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of  MNet amounts of
recognised recognised financial
financial financial assets liabilities
liabilities set-off in the presented in the
statement of statement of
financial position  financial position
Description
2023
Forward currency contracts £ 58228 g - & 582,281
b 582,281
2022
Forward currency contracis £ 1,160,217 ] - £ 1,160,217
51,160,217
C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the Met amount
financial statement of financial position
liabilities iy and Dii) Vi) Collateral
presented in the Financial pledged
statement of Instrumients
financial position
Counterparty
2013
Counterparty | £ 983 % T26 g - g 257
Counterparty 2 945 945 - B
Counterparty 3 a04 511 = a3
-24 -
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k management (continued
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C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not sei-off in the Met amount
financial statement of financial position
liabilities N1} and DHii) i} Collateral
presented in the Financial pledged
statement of Instruments
financial position
Counterparty (continued)
2023 (continued)
Counterparty 4 5 122,793 5 3l b3 - £ 122,742
Counterparty 3 443 657 443 657 - -
Counterparty & 13,009 - - 13,009
§ 582,281 5 446,190 5 - % 136,091
C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the Met amount
financial staternent of financial position
liabilities (i) and DNii) i} Collateral
presented in the Financial pledged
statement of Instruments
financial position
Counterparty
2022
Counterparty 1 5 6,513 £ 225 5 - 3 6,288
Counterparty 2 1,108 1,108 - -
Counterparty 3 6,807 6,122 - 585
Counterparty 4 327 327 - .
Counterparty 4,739 4,739 - -
Counterparty & 1,139,549 1,139,549 - -
Counterparty 7 1,174 - - 1,174
5 1,160,217 5 1,152,070 5 - 5 8,147

Amounts in D{1) and D{ii) above relate to amounts subject to set-off that do not qualify for offsetting under
(B) above. This includes (i) amounts which are subject to set-off against the asset (or liability) disclosed in
*A" which have not been offset in the statement of financial position, and (i) any financial collateral (including
cash collateral), both received and pledged.

at fair value bhut for which fair value is disclosed

not earri

Investments are carried at fair valwe, The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities are carried
at amortised cost; their carrving values are a reasonable approximation of fair valee.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term invesiments in
an active market. Cash and cash equivalents have been determined using level 1 inputs. Margin includes

restricted cash balances held as margin or collateral for foreign currency forwards trading. Margin has been
determined using level 1 inputs.

-25-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

9, Assetsa i ried at fair val ut for which fair value is disclosed (continued’

Reccivable from investments sold and other receivables include the contractual amounts for settlement of trades and
cther obligations due to the Class Fund, Payable for investments purchased and accruals represent the contractual
amounts and obligations due by the Class Fund for settlement of trades and expenses, These receivables and payables
have been determined using level 2 inputs.

The puttable value of Participating Units is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
liakilities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund's goveming documents, These Participating Units are
not traded on an active market. A demand feature is attached to these units, as they are redeemable at the Unitholders'
option and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Class
Fund's net asset value attributable to the Unit Class (Notes 2 and 7). The fair value is based on the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. The impact of discounting in this
instance is not material. As such, Level 2 is deemed 1o be the most appropriate categorisation for net assets afiributable
1o Unitholders.

10, _Commitments

In the normal course of business, the trustee and'or Manager (“Management™) on behalf of the Trust enters into
contracts that contain a wvaricty of representations and warmranties and which provide general indemnifications.
Management’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that

may be made against Management that have not yet occurred, however, based on experience, Management expects
the risk of loss 1o be remaote.

11._Reclassifications

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm to the current year presentation (see Notes 3 and 8).

12, Subsequent events

From February 1, 2023 through June 22, 2023, the Class Fund received subscriptions of $nil, and paid redemptions of
£349 530 and AUD 439,108 and dividends of $104,247 and AUD 715,713,

Subsequent events were evaluated up until June 22, 2023, which was the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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“e OF
AMORTIZED  FAIR NET

QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALUE ASSETS
CONVERTIELE BONDS
172,000 DISH NETWORK CORP 2.375% 03/15/24 § 158312 § 159926  0.63%
158312 159926  0.63%
FLOATING RATENOTES
97,000 AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 3.55% 21-PERP 76,873 86,022 0.34%
200,000 BAMNCO DE SABADELL 5A FTF 0970826 206 220,351 087
132,000 CHARLES SCHW AB CORF/THE 4% 21-PERF 129605 120,009  0.48%
86,000 CITIGROUP IMC 3.875% 21-PERP 84,518 18849 0.31%
107,000 CITIGROUP INC 4% 20-PERP OR029 99258 039
300,000 CFI PROPERTY GROUP SA 3.75% 21-FERP 296,683 161,116  0.64%
100,000 CREDIT SUTSSE GROUP AGFTF 0402732 110,742 85223 03494
200,000 DEUTSCHE BANK AG 10% 22-PERP 200216 233102 0.93%
100,000 DEUTSCHE BANK AGFTV 06/24/32 110,686 100428  040%
100,000 KONINKLUKE KPN NV 6% 22-PERF 99313 110640 0.44%
200,000 LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC 8.5% 22-PERP 252,720 253639 1.01%
200,000 PERMANENT TSB GROUP HOLDINGS PLC 13.25% 22-PERP 195810 244240  0.97%
200,000 SOCIETE GENERALE SA 9.375% 22-PERP 200000 215250 0.85%
100,000 TELEFONICA EUROPE BY 6.135% 23-PERP 109,025 107,014 0.42%
2,143.216 2116141 83%%
ORDINARY BONDS
62000 ADAPTHEALTH LLC 5.125% 03/01/30 62 144 61,559 02484
100,000 ADLER PELZER HOLDING GMEBH 4. 125% 04/01/24 89,553 90360 036%
33,000 AGTTMT ESCROW ISSUER LLC 8.625% 09/30/27 3OO0 34091 O4%
87,000 ALBERTSONS COS INC/SAFEWAY INCHNEW A 3.5% 03/15/29 75,276 THEE  030%
100,000 ALLIED UNIVERSA L HOLDCO LLO/ALLIED UN 3.625% 06/01/28 120,050 90,880  0.36%
GOA1% AMCENTERTATINMENT HOLDIMNGS TNC 129 06/ 15726 46,967 29815 01204
28,000 AMERICAN AXLE & MANUFACTURING INC 6.25% 03/15/26 26,875 26,365 0.10%
7,000 AMN HEALTHCARE INC 4% 04/15/29 6,073 6060  0.02%
70,000 ANTERO RESOURCES CORP 5.375% 03/01/30 68,372 65575 0.26%
119,000 ARCHES BUYER INC 4.25% 06/0128 98623 100,595 0.40%
T0,000 ARCHROCK PARTNERS LI/ ARCHROCKE PARTMER 6 875% 04/01/27 73,350 68,682 0.27%
05,000 ARCOMIC CORP 6,125% 021528 93,138 59,866 0.36%
200,000 ARD FINANCE SA 5% 06/30/27 224,859 165297  0.66%
261,000 ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING FIN. USA [LOUARDA 6% 06/15/27 261,000 260,559 L03%
48,000 A TKORE INTL GROUP INC 4.25% 06/01/31 45000 42251 017%
175,000 AUSTIN BIDCO [NC 7.125% 121528 165,664 147276 0.58%
48,000 BALL CORP 3.125% 09/15/31 41,316 39340 0.16%
118,000 BELLRING BRANDS INC 7% 03/15/30 7,126 117,861  047T%
G7,000 BOMBARDIER [MC 7.5% 02/01/20 67,000 67,159 0.27%
659,000 BROADSTREET PARTNERS INC 5.875% (:/715/29 60,5968 61,048 0.24%
75,000 BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE INC 4.25% 02/01/32 75356 64555 0.26%
108,000 BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE INC 6.375% 06/15/32 103,545 105804  0.42%
122,000 CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT INC 7% 02/15/30 122,000 124483 0.49%
216,000 CARGD ATRCRAFT MANAGEMENT INC 4.75% 02/01/28 216470 195768 0.78%

300,000 CARMIVAL CORP 7.625% 053/01/26 283,334 72939 1.08%
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YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

% OF
AMORTIZED  FAIR NET
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST ___ VALUE ASSETS
ORDINARY BONDS (CONTINUED)
100,000 CASTLE UK FINCO PLC 7% 05/15/29 £ 117,599 § 91111 036%
177,000 CATALENT PHARMA SOLUTIONS INC 3.5% 04/01/30 143,917 146581  0.58%
86,000 CCOHOLDINGS LLC/ CCO HOLDINGS CAPITAL C 4.5% 0S/01/32 83,100 71274 0.28%
100,000 CELLMEX TELECOM SA 1.75% 10/23/30 80305 88358 0.35%
121,000 CHART INDUSTRIES INC 7.5% 01/01/30 120,545 124025  0.49%
90,000 CHOBANI LLC/ CHOBANI FIN. CORF INC 4.625% 11/15/28 45576 45680  0.18%
200,000 CHOBANILLC / CHOBANI FIN. CORP INC 7.5% 04/15/25 191,535 196468  0.78%
164,000 CIEMA CORP 4% 01/31/30 157,052 43716 0.57%
60,000 COINBASE GLOBAL INC 3.375% 10/01/28 54397 38816 0.15%
98,000 COMNBASE GLOBAL INC 3.625% 10/01/31 92438 ST260  0.23%
40,000 COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC 4.875% 07/15/24 47642 47540 0.19%
134,000 COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC 6.79% 12/01/27 135807 131,180  0.52%
73,000 CONSOLIDATED COMM. INC 5% 10/01/28 TIE00 54884 0.22%
55,000 COMSOLIDATED COMM. INC 6.5% 10/01/28 43161 44832 0.08%
200,000 DIC ASSET AG2.25% 092226 235080 149093 0.59%
234,000 DT MIDSTREAM INC 4.125% 06715/29 234000 206888  0.82%
138,000 DT MIDSTREAM INC 4.375% 06/15/31 138,000 120,596 0.48%
200,000 DUFEY ONE BY 2% 021527 185,085 186704 0.74%
95,000 ELEMENT SOLUTIONS INC 3.875% 09/01/28 92025 BTTIO 0.35%
171,000 ENLINK MIDSTREAM LLC 5.625% 01/ 15/28 171,000 167383 0.66%
68,000 ENTEGRIS ESCROW CORP 5.95% 06/15/30 GLA68 65702 0.28%
170,000 ENTEGRIS INC 3.625% 05/01/29 160,442 145742 0.58%
SEO00  EQM MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LF 7.5% 06/01/27 56985 06 0.23%
140,000 EURCFINS SCIENTIFIC SE 6.75% 23-PERP 150462 154473 0.61%
120,000 FAURECIA SE2.75% 0215727 0108 116026 0.46%
100,000 FAURECIA SE3.75% 06/15/28 TT346 96202 0.38%
200,000 FIBER BIDCO SPA 11% 102527 191,545 236,100 0.94%
66,000 FORD MOTOR OO 4.75% 01/15/43 70364 51,595 0.20%
104,000 FORD MOTOR CO 6.1% 08/19/32 104,000 101,868  0.40%
260,000 FORD MOTOR CREDIT OO LLC 3.25% 09/15/25 6618 272818 LOE%
28000 FORTRESS TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTU 6.5% 10/01/23 7207 A 001%
113,000 FORTRESS TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTLU 9.75% 08/01/27 114293 115850  0.46%
167,000 FTATINFRA ESCROW HOLDINGS LLC 10,5% 06/01/27 159283 167,729 06T
282,000 FULL HOUSE RESORTS TNC 8.25% 02/15/28 2B7582 261118 1.04%
190,000 GCTLLC 4755 10/15/28 190,028 166441  0.66%
211,000 GLOBALNET LEASE INC/ GLOBAL NET LEAS 3.75% 12/15/27 2IL000 17108 071%
80,000 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COVTHE 5.25% 04/30031 BROGI  TeAS6  030%
61,000 GRAPHIC PACKAGING INTL LLC 3.75% 02/01/30 52287 S2832 0 021%
76,000 GRAY ESCROW I INC 5.375% 11/15/31 TE000  STAIO 0.23%
327000 GRAY TELEVISION INC 4.75% 10/15/30 323078 239869 0.05%
253,000 HADRIAN MERGER SUR INC £.5% 05/01/26 261,854 236055 0.04%
200,000 HERENS HOLDCO SARL 4.75% 05/15/28 200000 164252 0.65%
77000 HESS MIDSTREAM OPERATIONS LP 4.25% 02/15/30 TION0 67597 027T%
54,000 HESS MIDSTREAM OPERATIONS LP 5.125% 06/15/28 49442 50045 0.20%
166,000 HLF FIN. SARL LLC 4.875% 06/01/29 152,518 121,731 0.45%
126,000 HOWARD MIDSTREAM ENERGY PARTNERS LLC 6.75% 01/15/27 125299 122936 04¥%
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GLOBAL

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

“a OF
AMORTIZED FAIR MET
GUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST  VALUE ASSETS
ORDINARY BONDS (CONTINUED)

200,000 HT TROPLAST GMEH 9.25% 07/ 15/25 £ 224280 £ 210,783 0.84%
180,000 HUDBAY MINERALS INC 6.125% 04/01/29 180,421 167,055  0.66%
252,000 T-VIINC 5% 12/15/29 248301 239006 0.91%
200,000 ILIAD SA 5.375% 06/14/27 210,550 217928 0.8T%
229,000 10N TRADING TECHNOLOGIES SARL 5.75% 05/15/28 232,883 196,364  0.78%
82,000 TROM MOUMTATN INC 4.875% 00/15/27 81,458 77453 031%
119,000 TRON MOUNTATN INC 5 25% 07/15/30 02,355 107,847 043%
72,000 JANESTREET GROUP / JSG FIN. INC 4.5% 11/15/29 70,347 64,701 0.26%
92,000 JELD-WEN INC 4.875% 12/15/27 74,531 T4E86  0.30%
151,000 KOHL'S CORP 3.375% 05/01/31 2,045 11,699 Q44%
79,000 LABL ESCROW ISSUER LLC 10.5% 07/15/27 74,954 75258 0.30%
79,000 LABLINC 5875% 11/01/28 74,506 71,373 0.28%
208,000 LABLING 8.25% 11/01/29 201,564 174330 0.69%
37,000 LAMAR MEDIA CORP 3.625% 01/15/31 iz 112 3497 013%
56,000 LEVEL 3 FIN. INC 3.4% 03/01/27 51,348 48318 0.19%
125,000 LGI HOMES INC 4% 07/15/20 108439 100,991  040%
184,000 LIBERTY INTERACTIVE LLC §.25% 02/01/30 165,067 86438 0.34%
136,000 LIFE TIME INC 5.75% 01/15/26 140,151 130,878 0.52%
200,000 LORCA TELECOM BONDCO SA 434 09/18/27 211,605 199,622 0.79%
130,000 LOTTOMATICA SPA 9.75% 09/30/27 129942 149,843 0.59%
125,000 LPL HOLDIMGS INC 4.375% 05715031 125,384 105,588 0.44%
126,000 LSF9 ATLANTIS HOLDINGS LLC/ VICTRA FIN 7.75% 02/15/26 122,587 114,521 045%
110,000 MACY'S RETAIL HOLDINGS LLC 5.875% 04/01/29 oR528 103,816 041%
110,000 MAGIC MERGECO INC 7.875% 05/01/29 85454 E2913  033%
90,000 MAGNOLIA OIL & GAS OPERA TING LLC / MAGNOLIA 6% 08/01/26 88,839 B7,165  0.35%
100,000 MARKS & SPEMNCER PLC 3,75% 05/09/26 144,244 113480 0.45%
BLO00 MATCH GROUP HOLDINGS 11 LLC 5.625% 02/15/29 78,925 76234 030%
205,000 MODIVEARE ESCROW ISSUER INC 5% 10/01/29 198237 177,937  0.71%
309,000 MOZART DEBT MERGER SUB INC 5.25% 10/01/29 00,415 260265 103%
33,000 MAVIENT CORF 4.875% 03/15/28 29,040 20,100 0.12%
15,000 NAVIENT CORP 5.5% 03/15/29 14,750 13273 0.05%
96,000 NAVIENT CORP 5.625% 08/01/33 71,392 75430 0.30%
200,000 METFLIX INC 3.625% 05/15/27 231,573 213,538 0.85%
55,000 NEWELL BRANDS INC 6.625% 09/15/29 55,000 55,644 022%
45,000 NEWS CORP 3.875% 05/15/29 40,576 40,149 0.16%
107,000 NEXSTAR BROADCASTING INC 4.75% 11/01/28 108,634 95,634 0.38%
317,000 NGL ENERGY OPERA TING LLC / NGL ENERGY FIN 7.5% 02/01/26 FIT000 299870 L19%
200,000 NOMAD FOODS BONDCO PLC 2.5% 06/24/28 150,150 186,638 0.74%
89,000 NORDSTROM INC 5% 01/15/44 85,029 59942 0.24%
150,000 NORTOMLIFELOCK INC 6.75% 09/30027 148450 152,136 0.60%
186,000 OCCIDENTAL PETROLELM CORP 6.375% 09/01/28 186,123 193,341 077%
200,000 ORGAMOMN FIN. 1 LLC 5.125% 04/30v31 164,688 179,311 0.71%
34,000 OWENS & MINOR INC 4.5% 03/31/29 27,995 27,7146 0.11%
GR,000  OWENS & MIMNOR INC 6.625% 04701730 61,700 60,259 0.24%
51,000 OWL ROCK CORE INCOME CORP 7.75% 09/ 16/27 91,118 91,558 0.36%

29
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I REMN LECTION

% OF
AMORTIZED  FAIR MET
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST VALUE ASSETS
ORDMINARY BONDS (CONTINUED)
240,000 PCF GMBH 4.75% (4/15/26 $ 287280 S 222312 0.88%
236,000 PECF USS INTERMEDIA TE HOLDING 1T CORP 5% 11/15/29 227656 180,310 0.72%
74000 PENMYMAC FIN. SERVICES IMC 5.75% 08/15/31 62,320 62,404 0.25%
100,000 PICARD GROUFE SAS 3875% 07/01/26 98,819 08,855 01,399
200,000 PINNACLE BIDCO PLC 6.375% 02/15/25 231,796 4700 0.89%
73,000 POST HOLDINGS TNC 4.59% 09/15/31 64,576 62520 025%
177,000 QUICKEN LOAMS LLC/ QUICKEN LOANS CO-IS 3.875% 03/01/31 164,607 144400 05T%
224,000 ROYAL CARIBEEAN CRUISES LTD 11.625% 08/15/27 223,749 237,731 0.54%
21,000 ROYAL CARIBBEAN CRUISES LTD %.25% 0171529 £1,000 85,764 0,34%
67,000 EYAN SPECIALTY GROUP LLC 4,375% 02/01/30 60,608 60,459 0.24%
100,000 SCHAEFFLER AG 3.375% 10/12/28 T8.875 0E206 0394
52,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW II IMC 3.875% 01/15/29 50,113 43506 017
150,000 SCRIFPS ESCROW ITINC 5.375% 01/15/31 150,171 119,473 0.48%
79000 SCRIPPS ESCROW INC 5.875% 07/15/27 80,745 26 0.28%
98,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN 4.125% 01/15/31 82,568 82 488 0.33%
268,510 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN 9.625% 12701/32 319319 304,402 1.21%
161,000 SERVICE CORP INTERMATIOMAL/US 3.375% 08/15/30 148,737 135530 0.54%
135,000 SHEA HOMES LP / SHEA HOMES FUNDING CORP 4.75% 04/01/29 134,284 115204  0.46%
168,000 SIRIUS XM RADIO INC 4% 0771528 169,000 149,903 0,600
68,000 SIX FLAGS ENTERTAINMENT CORP 5.5% 04/15/27 60,531 64,042 0.25%
107,000 SLM CORP 3.129% 11/02/26 94,264 04600 0.38%
90,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY CO 4.759% 02/01/32 WL5T0 79086 031%
107,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY OO0 5.375% 03/15/30 107,000 99930 0408
43,000 SPIRIT LOYALTY CAYMAN LTD / SPIRIT IP CAYM 8% 09200125 42,3535 44,015 0.17%
H6,000 SPRINGLEAF FIN, CORP 5,375% 11/15/29 9,711 24,185 0.33%
3R2,000 STANDARD INDUSTRIES INCMI 3.375% 01715731 346,721 303874 1.21%
122,000 SUMMIT MATERIALS LLC/ SUMMIT MATERIALS 5.25% 01715729 109623 114704 046%
206,000 SUNOCO LP S SUNOCO FIN. CORP 4.5% 04/30/30 286,109 266,880 1.06%%
£1,000 SURGERY CEMTER HOLDINGS INC 1086 04/15/27 80,591 £3,125  033%
75,000 SYMEOS HEALTH INC 3.625% 01/15/29 2214 60,832 0.24%
127,000 TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTHERS LP/ TALLGRASS 5.5% 01/15/28 124,500 117,288 047%
128,000 TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP/ TALLGRASS EN 6% 03/01527 126,196 121,763 0.48%
146,000 TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS EN &% 00/01/31 127,425 131,545 0.52%
100,000 TELECOM ITALLA SPAMILAND 1.625% 01/18/29 104,428 82678 033%
100,000 TELECOM ITALIA SPAMILANO 2.875% 01/28/26 107,111 ARG 3G
206,000 TEMET HEALTHCARE CORP 6.125% 06/15/30 206,000 200,111 079
210,000 TERRAFORM POWER OPERATING LLC 4.75% 01/15/30 211,760 189,547 079
200,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS 3.73% 05/00/27 213548 196,872 0.78%
200,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS 4.375% 05/08/30 231600 IETERE 0.79%
200,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS 1 4.5% 03/01/25 221919 213,641 0.85%
TEO00 THOR INDUSTRIES INC 4% 10/15/29 63,780 64956 0.26%
185,000 TRAMSDIG INC 4.875% 05/01/29 178,311 166,600  0.66%
T7,000 UNIVISION COMM. INC 7.375% 06/30/30 76,581 75406 0.30%
100,000 VALLOUREC SA 8.5% 06/30/26 110200 109833 0.44%
100,000 VERALLIA SA 1.875% 11/10/31 £5,900 87,362 0.35%
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

¥ OF
AMORTIZED FAIR NET

QUANTITY SECURITY DES CRIPTION COST YALLUE ASSETS

ORDINARY BONDS (CONTINUELD)
100,000 VERISURE HOLDING AB 7.125% 0201/28 5 1RG50 5 109,010 04324
110,000 VERISURE HOLDING A B 9.25% 101327 105,936 128,280 0.51%
275,000 VICTORIA'S SECRET & CO 4.625% 07/15/29 241,215 2R AT 0.91%
200,000 VILLA DUTCH BIDCO BY 926 11/03/29 197,505 208,249 0.83%
IE7,000 WATCODCOS LLC S WATCOD FIM. CORP 6.5% 067 15/27 184,230 176,274 0704
160,000 WHPAP TELECOM HOLDIMGS I BY 5.5% 01715/30 180576 146,065 0.58%
212,000 WYNDHAM DESTINATIONS IMNC 6.625% 07/31/26 F0,.994 210,234 0.83%
100,000 ZF FIN. GMBH 5.75% 08/03/26 108,166 10,251 0.43%%
22,117,556 20589670  S1.73%

SHARES

1,950 BECTON DICKINSOMN AND CO 103,167 97,503 0.39%
2,885 CHART INDUSTRIES INC 144,480 159,252 0.63%
247,647 256,755 1.02%
TOTAL VALUE OF INVES TMENTS 24666731 23122492 91.76%
OTHER ASSETS, NET OF LIABILITIES 2,046,743 B.24%

NET ASSETS 25,189,235 100.00%%
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2023

24,213,060 3,384,259,396
1,637,191 228,830,186
3,501,361 489,385,227
4,332,685 605,579,382
1,026,709 143,503,117
21,193,096 1,930,055,253

24,199

432,176

63,248

709,625
144.69 20,223
10.03 1,402
16.23 2,268
29.87 2,720
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2023 2,000,000 7,954
10,000,000 2,000,000
2023 6,609,418 2,380
One
2023 24 340

500
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23 103

2023 31
139.77
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
6,018,277 841,175 7,747,717 1,082,898
416,812 58,258
419,477 58,630 599,076 83,733
11,049 1,544 12,287 1,717
84,938 11,872 56,793 7,938
6,533,741 913,221 8,832,685 1,234,544
94,706 13,237 136,966 19,144
6,628,447 926,458 8,969,651 1,253,688
3,183,319 444,932
462,677 64,668 434,514 60,732
208,201 29,100 364,045 50,883
670,878 93,769 3,981,878 556,547
2,000,000 279,540 2,000,000 279,540
3,957,569 553,149 2,987,773 417,601
5,957,569 832,689 4,987,773 697,141
6,628,447 926,458 8,969,651 1,253,688
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021

22,385 3,129 41,671 5,824
22,385 3,129 41,671 5,824
4,775,820 667,516 4,697,515 656,572
212,503 29,702 221,622 30,976
38,400 5,367 38,400 5,367
5,026,723 702,585 4,957,537 692,915
5,049,108 705,714 4,999,208 698,739
2,663,914 372,335 2,646,420 369,890
1,008,720 140,989 1,006,565 140,688
361,491 50,526 361,491 50,526
44,638 6,239 42,629 5,958
549 7 10,000 1,398
4,079,312 570,165 4,067,105 568,459
969,796 135,548 932,103 130,280

142/217



2020 12 31

2021 12 31

2022 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOo0oDo0oDo00Do0oDo0obDOo00oogOonoO(E25766)

OOooooooooooooooooOo

2022 2021 12 31
2,000,000 279,540 3,255,670 455,045 5,255,670 734,585
932,103 130,280 932,103 130,280
(1,200,000) (167,724) (1,200,000) (167,724)
2,000,000 279,540 2,987,773 417,601 4,987,773 697,141
969,796 135,548 969,796 135,548
2,000,000 279,540 3,957,569 553,149 5,957,569 832,689
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
969,796 135,548 932,103 130,280
44,638 6,239 42,629 5,958
1,014,434 141,787 974,732 136,238
416,812 58,258 682,458 95,387
179,599 25,103 (155,559) (21,742)
1,238 173 837 117
(28,145) (3,934) 5,735 802
(3,183,319) (444,932) (2,269,012) (317,140)
28,163 3,936 (71,711) (10,023)
(155,844) (21,782) 118,434 16,554
(1,727,062) (241,391) (714,086) (99,808)
(2,378) (332) (23,035) (3,220)
(1,200,000) (167,724)
(1,729,440) (241,724) (1,937,121) (270,751)
7,747,717 1,082,898 9,684,838 1,353,650
6,018,277 841,175 7,747,717 1,082,898
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2022 2021 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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IFRS 2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31

16 12
2022 2021 12 31

12
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2022 2021
1,918,277 3,247,717
4,100,000 4,500,000
6,018,277 7,747,717
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
325,292 469,711
94,185 129,365
419,477 599,076
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2022 2021
5,057 25,716
53,240 75,730
21,513 76,634
79,810 178,080

2022 2021
(549) (10,000)
549 10,000

2022 2021
3,183,319
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2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
23,035 23,035

2021 12 31 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
2,378 2,378

2022 12 31 793,393 372,854 1,166,247
2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
26,243 16,386 42,629

2021 12 31 708,910 317,993 1,026,903
28,252 16,386 44,638

2022 12 31 737,162 334,379 1,071,541
2021 12 31 82,105 54,861 136,966
2022 12 31 56,231 38,475 94,706

2022 2021
10,000,000
2,000,000 2021 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
2022 12 31

2021 1,200,000
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Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee

(Trust) Companies

2022 2021
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2022 12 31 975,610 2021 975,610
2022 2021
12 31
416,812
4,936 987
760,884
22,727 3,932
12 31
238,600 238,600
30,961 25,000
361,491 361,491
2022 2021 12 31
2011 31

10
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2021
10

144,360

2021
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2022 12 31
143,920

53.97 2021 47.76
2022 2021
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2022
2021 12 31
2022
0.03 1.4 1,918,277 4,100,000 6,018,277
419,477 419,477
11,049 11,049
2,348,803 4,100,000 6,448,803
462,677 462,677
462,677 462,677
1,886,126 4,100,000 5,986,126
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2021
0.01 0.05 3,247,717 4,500,000 7,747,717
5.26 416,812 416,812
599,076 599,076
12,287 12,287
4,275,892 4,500,000 8,775,892
0.005 0.01 3,183,319 3,183,319
434,514 434,514
3,617,833 3,617,833
658,059 4,500,000 5,158,059
2022 12 31 30 2021 30
5,755 2021 1,444
30 2021 30
30 5,755 2021 1,444
2022 12 31 30 2021 30
12,300 2021 13,500
30 2021 30
30 12,300 2021 13,500
2022 2021 12 31 30
2021
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
2021
54,556 54,556
10 2022 12 31
2021 5,456
12
2021
13
15
2022 2021 12 31
400,000 500,000
2022 2021 12 31
14
2023
15
2022
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexprezsed in Unifed Stales dollars)

2022 2021
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalants (Mote 3) § BD018.277 $ rTATTIT
Due from clients (Mote ) - 416,812
Clhent accounts nacevabla (Note 4) 419,477 589,076
Other receivables 11,049 12,287
Prepald expenses 84,338 56,793
6,533,741 8,832 685
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Mote 6) 94,706 135 966
§ 6628447 %  B.969851
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors’ accounts (Notes 5 and 9) $ - $ 3183319
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note &) 462,677 434 514
Feis recaived in advance 208,201 364,045
670,878 3,081,878
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note T) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings 3,957,669 2,987,773
5,957,568 4,987,773
§ B B28.447 $ 8,969,651

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive

Income
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
fexpressad in Unifed Stales dollars)

2022 2021
INTEREST INCOME 7 22 385 5 41,871
INTEREST EXPENSE L -
MET INTEREST INCOME 22,385 41,671
OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustes and management fees (Nate 8) 4,775,820 4,697 515
Miscallansous 212,503 221,822
Rental income 38,400 38,400
5,026,723 4 857 537
TOTAL INCOME 5,048,108 4,999,208
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salanes and benefits (Note 10) 2,663,914 2,646,420
Administration (Note 9} 1,008,720 1,008,585
Rent expense (Mote 8} 361,49 361,491
Depreciation (Note &) 44,638 42 629
Expacted cradit loss (Note 4) 548 10,000
4.079,312 4 067 105
MNET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 5 968,786 ] 932,103

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in

Shareholders’ Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
fexprassad in Unifed Stales dollars)

Total
Retained sharaholder's
Share capital earmings equity
Balanca at Decamber 31, 2020 $ 2000000 § 3255870 § 5255670
Met income and comprehensive income - 932,103 232,103
Dividends (Note 7) = (1,200,000 {1,200,000)
Balance at December 31, 2021 2,000,000 2087773 4 987,773
Met income and comprehensive income - 969,795 968,706
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 2000000 $ 3957569 $ 5957560

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

2022 2024
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income $ 969,796 3 932,103
Adjustments for items not affecting cash:
Depreciation 44 638 42 529
1,014,434 974,732
Changes in operating assels and liabilities:
Due from clients 416,812 682,458
Client accounts receivable 179,599 (155,558)
Other receivables 1,238 83T
Prepaid expenses {28,145) 5,735
Depositors’ accounls (3,183,318) {2,269,012)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,163 {71,711}
Fees received in advance {155,844) 118,424
[1,727,062) {714,086)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assats {2,378) {23 035)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid - {1,200,000)
MET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {1,729,440) (1,937,121)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGIMNNING OF YEAR 7,747,717 9,684,838
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR § 6018277 §  TR4TTIT

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars)

1. THE COMPANY ANDITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Lid, ("QBTC") and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. (the *Parent”), a company also incorporated in the
Cayman |slands.

On January 2, 2009, QBTC undertook a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activities. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertook a merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust activities, On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Lid. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Lid. and is licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
icense and Mulual Fund Administration license with the Cayman Istands Monetary Authonty ("CIMA™).

The Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempling it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031, Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present ime,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consobdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and reflect the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investee;
+ s exposed, or has nghts, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
+ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether of nol it conlfals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Caonsolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obitains control over the subsidiary and ceases
whan the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, incorme and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains confrol until the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany fransactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation, Refer to
Mate 8 for other disclosures relating to the subsidianes,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Use of estimates

Financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Eabilities and disclosure of contingent assels
and Eabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
during the reporting perod, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three
months ar less.

Due from clients

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given to clients for which the carrying value approximates
fair value as such amounts bear interest at varable rates, Due from clients are recorded net of a
provision for expected credit losses.

Client accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clents. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision Tor expected credit losses, Receivables
for disbursements made on behall of clients do not have a related provision for expected eredit losses
as these balances typically represent unbifed disbursements that the Company expects (o recover
once billad.

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income baged on the expected
credif losses in receivable balances, These are based upon management’s knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depredation. Deprediation is calculated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3to 15 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (f any). For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has
ned identified any assels for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest beaning instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yvield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

« directorship, trustee, management and other similar services provided to clients;

+ miscellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
clents in connection with the directorship, trustee and management services being pravided,
and

= rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration thal the Company is conltracted to receive from ils
chients and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
management, and registered office services to its chents. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple

senvices are provided o a single client, the revenues generated from each lype of service are
recognised separately.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Revenue recognition (confinued)

tiscellansows income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's overhead and
fees charged to clients for miscellaneous senvices such as copy services for meatings or courier costs.
Desbursement fee revenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustee, management and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattern as the revenues
for those services. Fees charged to dients for miscellaneous semnvices are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they are provided.

The Company records renfal income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is earned and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based on a contract.

Foreign currency transiation

The Company's presantation currancy is the United States dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in currencies other than United States dollars have been translated info United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. Forelgn curmency
transactions and income and expense items have been franslated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and losses ansing from transkation are included in the consolidated
slaternents of comprehensive income.

Assetls under administration

Securnities, cash and other assets held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or Aduciary capadity are not
incheded in these consolidated financial statements as such assets are not the property of the Company.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are recognised in the Company’s statemeant of financial positicn
when the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Finandal assets
and financial iabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on their cash flow characterstics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assels and abiliies held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
value,

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of it transfers the fnancial asset and substantially all of the fsks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to anather entity. Financial Rabilities are derecognised when tha Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
losses. No provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2022
and 2021,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fiduciary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opimon of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lnwyears, no
provisions are required at December 31, 2022 and 2021,

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, a lessee recognizes assets and Babilities for all lease amangements unless the
termis 12 months or less o the underlying asset has a low value, Due o the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Mote 9) existing as at and duning the years ended Decemnber 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company has recorded the month to month lease costs as rent expense on the consclidated statements
of carmprehansive income.

New and revised IFRS standards in izsue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future pericds.

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainfy

The Company makes estimales and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on histonical experence and other factors including
expectations of fulure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the crcumstances. The key areas
of judgemeant or estimation are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assets as well
as the recoverability of client accounts recevable frorm clients and due from clients, The expected useful
economic ves of fived assels are based on prior experience of similar assats, Chent accounts receivable
and due from cients are measured as either a 12 month or lifetime ECL based on credit risk
considerations,

3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021

Call deposits $ 1818277 § 3247717
Shorl-lerm fixed deposits 4 100,000 4,500,000
§  Bo0ig277 8 TTATTIT

Short-lerm fixed deposits as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 mature within three months fromithe ariginal
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

4, CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee income eamed by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

—_—20ee 2021

Fee income receivablas g 325,292 5 469,711
Recevables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 94,185 129,365
Less: provision for expecied credil losses = =

3 419,477 5 599,076

Fee income recaivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. In determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired

2022 2021
81 to 180 days $ 5,057 ] 25,716
181 to 360 days 53,240 75,730
Crver 360 days 21,513 76,634
Total - past due but not impaired 5 79,810 b 178,080
Mowvaments in the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year ] - 3 -
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible (548) {10,000}
Increase in provision 543 10,000
Balance at end of year -3 - 3 -

To reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its custormers and defines
credit imits as part of its onboarding process, Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfalio are
reviewed on an ongeing basis throughout the year.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ accounts are classified as follows:

2022 _ 2o
Call deposits 5 - § 3,183,319

6. FIXED ASSETS

Furniture and

computer
aquipment Motor vehicles Total

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2020 5 7E7.880 % 372854 § 1,140,834
Additicns 23,035 . 23,035
Balance at Decembear 31, 2021 791,015 72,854 1,163,860
Additicns 2378 = 2378
Balance at December 31, 2022 793,303 372,854 1,166,247
Balance at December 31, 2020 682,667 0,807 984,274
Depreciation expensea 26,243 16,386 42 629
Balance at December 31, 2021 708,810 317,933 1,026,803
Depreciation expense 28,252 16,386 44 838
Balance at December 31, 2022 T3r. 162 334,378 1,071,541
Net book value, December 31, 2021 3 B2106 5 54881 3 136,965
Met book value, December 31, 2022 3 56231 3§ 3BATS 5 94,706
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

_ 0er 200
Authorized;
10,000,000 Crdinary voting shares of $1 par value each

Ispued;
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (2021: 2,000,000) £ 2000000 § 2,000,000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distibutions out of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distribution shall be paid
excepl out of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, no dividend was declared and paid (2021: $1,200,000). The rights conferred upon
the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the
creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consobdated financial staterments inclede the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Tilly Mominees Limited and Coultry Directors Ltd., and Tilly Nominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to two wholly-owned subsidianies, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretanes Limited {collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”). All of the subsidiaries listed below are icensed as Mominee (Trust) Companies with

CiniA.

Placa of Proportion of ownership

Principal incorparation interest and voting power

Name of subsidiany activity and operation held by the Company

2022 2021

Provide nominee

Tilty Nominees Limited  shareholder services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporale

Coultry Directors Lid director sarvices Cayman lslands 100% 100%
Provide corporale

Tilly Directors Limited director sarvices Cayman lslands 100% 100%
Pravide company

Tilly Secretaries Limited sacretary services Cayman Islands 10:0% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other suppert. There are no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to access
or use assets or settle Fabilities of the Subsidianes.

As of December 31, 2022, guaranteas in the total amount of $975,610 (2021: 5975 ,610) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Iskands on behalf of its Subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following related party balances and

transachons:
2022 2021
As of December 31:
Due from clients - 416,812
Client accounts recaivable 4938 887
Depositors’ accounts - 760,884
Agcounts payable and accrued expenses 22727 3,832
r n mber 31:
Dirsctorship, trustse and managemaent feas 238,800 238,600
Directors' fees (included in Administration expensges) 30,961 25,000
Rant axpanse 381,491 361,491

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential
interest rates.

Centain employees of the Company and ceftain assets of the Company are also uliised by the Parent
for its ongoing operations. The employees’ services and use of the assets is currently not recharged lo
thie Parent and is not separately quantifiable.

Some of the Company's employesas alsa provided directorship semvices to a number of clients who had
deposits and overdrafts with the Company during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company leases office space from a related party. The annual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currently leaging the space on a month to month basis based on the
prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employees.
Contributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employeas’ portion. The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2022 was 5144,360 (2021: $143,520) and is included
in salanes and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive INCOMe.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrement is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of cne entity and a financial liability
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts invalving financial instruments during the normal
course of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are monitored by managemeni. The main nisks
arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and cumency risk. The exposure to. and management of, these risks is
summarnsed below. The year-end figures reperted in these consolidated financial statements for
financial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
foor the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company 1o credit and counterparty risk consist prmarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clents and client accounts receivable.

The Campany manages its expaosure (o credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fived deposils
with a regulated financial instifufion in the Cayman Islands, only taking referred business, and
moniftoring outstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has a concenfration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by cne financial
instituticn in the Cayrman |slands.

Dwuring the year ended December 31, 2022, approximately 53.97% (2021: 47.76%) of the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees were earned from its three (2021: three) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2022 or 2021,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Campany will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial iabilities.

The Company's objective is to maintain depositors’ accounts which hawve a range of maturities
consistent with its asset base. Liquidity rrsk s monftored by the Company's managemeant to ensuna
that the Company has sufficient Bquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash cutllows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of its iabiities and assats, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportion of its assets in cash
in order to manage iquidity nsk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk
Market nisk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises inferest rate risk and
currency sk,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fsk is the fsk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a inancial instrument will luctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensunng that the interest rate on assats (Le. cash and
due from clients) equals or exceeds that of the relevant offsetting liability {j.e. depositors’ accounts).
The tables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. Items are allocated fo
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next interest rate re-pricing date and the maturity date.

20220
Effective
Interest
Rate Less than  Greater than
ar £ On demand 3 months 3 moenths Taital
Monetary Assats:
Cash and cash equivalanis 00314 § 1918277 3% 4,100,000 5 = & 6MMB2TT
Due from clients . - . - .
Client accounts receivable - 415,477 - 419477
Other recervablas - 11,048 - 11,048
5 zlmma * 4,100,000 5 - }ME
Monetary Lisbiities:
Depositors’ accounts - 5 - 8 - 8 - %
Agcounts payable and accrued
SAPENSES - 462 577 = - AE2BTT
§ 462677 § - 3 - 5 482677
Sensitivityliquidity gap § 1,886,126 ¥ 4,100,000 % - 5 5986126
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
2021:
Effective
Interest
Rarter Less than Greater than
or Range (%) _ On demand 1 months 1 manths Total
Monetary Assets:
Cash and cash squivalents o005 § 3247717 § 4500000 3§ - & THMTTT
Due frem clients 526 416,812 - - 416812
Client scoounts recedvabie - 588,076 - - 598,076
Odher receivables . 12287 - - 12287
§ 4275807 § 4500000 % . % BTT5R07
Monatary Liabilities:
Depasitors’ accounts 0005001 5 3183316 % - 5 - 5 3EMe
Accounts payable and accrued § 434,514 5 434514
§ 3617833 § - 5 - 617,
Sensitivityliquidity gap 5 BER050 & 4500000 & . i ]

The Company is exposed to nsks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fived
and floating interest rates on its cash flows.

At December 21, 2022, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market inferest rates had been 30
(2021: 300 basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been $5,755 lower (2021: 51,444 lower). If market interest rates had been 30 (2021 30) basis points
loweer with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have increased by less than
£5 755 lower (2021: would have increased by less than 51,444) due Lo the fact that certain account
balances earn interest at a lower rate lower than 30 basis points.

At December 31, 2022, with respect to the fixed rale exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2020 30) basiz points higher with all other variables held constant, =harehokder's equity would have
been 512,300 higher (2021: 513,500 higher). If market interest rates had been 30 (2021: 30) basis
points lower with all other vanables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less
than $12 300 (2021: would have decreased by less than $13 500) due to the fact thal certain aceaiint
balances earn interest at a rate lower than 30 basis points,

This analysis is based on interest beanng instruments held at year-and, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the year and the interest beanng Instruments wera halkd
constant throughout the reporting pencd. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in market rates for the years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021.

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financlal instrument will flucluate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures (o the
Cayman Islands dollar (2021: Great Brntain pound and Cayman Islands dollar). Since the Company
prepares its financial statements in United States dollars, the Company’s consolidated statements of
financial position are affected by movements in the exchange rate of various curencies agains! the
United States dollar. The Cayman Islands dollar has a fixed exchange rate against the United States
dellar. Translation gainsfosses ariging from these exposures are reported net in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income,

The table below shows the Company's cumency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Such exposures comprse the monetary liabilities of the Company that are not
denominated in either the presentation currency or a currency with a fixed rate of exchange to the
presentation cumency of the Company. To manage its currency risk, the Company may approximate
net foreign currency assets and liabilities against each other. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
these exposures were as lollows:

Significant net foreign currency monetary assets, December 31, 2022 and 2021 (ranslated into United
States dollars):

For the year ended December 31, 2022, no foreign currency assets or Babilities were held other than
the Cayman lslands dollar, which is pegaed to the United States dallar.

Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk (continued)
2021:
Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’  currency monetary
equivalents accounts asseals
GBP -] 54,556 § - & 54,556

Had the United States dollar been stronger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all other varables held constant, the net result for the year ended December 31, 2022 would
decrease of increasa by il (2021: 55 456).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capstal to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the sharehelder through the optimesation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company's overall sirategy remains unchanged from 2021,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voting shares and retained eamings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by CIMA. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can inittate certain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
have a direct matenal effect on the Company's consolidated finandal statements, Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of the Company's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatony
accounting practices. The Company’s capital amaunts and classification are also subject to qualitativa
Judgrments by CIMA about components and sk welghlings.

The Company Is required at all imes to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking lcense. The Company is in compliance with this
reguirement as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company = required to maintain a minimum net worh of

KYD400,000 (LS5500,0000. The Company is in compiance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financal statements were approved by a committee of the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on March 7, 2023
Page 20
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company is in the process of surrendenng its Class B Banking license with CIMA in near future
and accordingly all the deposits balances were paid out during 2022,

Page 21
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Independent auditor’s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series
trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Global
High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at
January 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2023;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the supplementary
schedule of investments (unaudited), (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Class Fund’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Class Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

June 22, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 7, 2023
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